
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

This meeting will be conducted in a hybrid model with both in-person attendance and teleconference 
participation: 
 
Teleconference Location #1 2735 Park Blvd., Oakland, CA  
Teleconference Location #2 118 Glashaus Loop, Emeryville, CA  
Teleconference Location #3 30587 Huntwood Ave, Hayward CA  
Teleconference Location #4 1534 Ashby Ave, Berkeley, CA  
Teleconference Location #5 Heron Bay Regatta Park, 2296 Regatta Way, San Leandro, CA 

 
Members of the public may attend in person at the addresses listed above or by: 
 

1. Calling US+1 669 900 6833 and using the Webinar ID 828 3859 7505 
2. Using the Zoom website or App and entering meeting code 828 3859 7505 
 
 

During the meeting the chair will explain the process for members of the public to be 
recognized to offer public comment. The process will be described on the StopWaste website 
at http://www.stopwaste.org/virtual-meetings no later than noon, Thursday, January 11, 
2024.  
 

The public may also comment by sending an e-mail to publiccomment@stopwaste.org. 
Written public comments will be accepted until 3:00 p.m. on the day prior to the scheduled 
meeting. Copies of all written comments submitted by the deadline above will be provided to 
each Board Member and will be added to the official record. Comments will not be read into 
the record. 
 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need assistance to participate in this 
meeting due to a disability, please contact the Clerk of the Board at (510) 891-6517. Notification 24 
hours prior to the meeting will enable the agency to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. 
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AGENDA 

 

 I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 II. ROLL CALL OF ATTENDANCE 
 

 III. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PRESIDENT 
 

 

IV. OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT 
An opportunity is provided for any member of the public wishing to speak on any matter within the 
jurisdiction of the Board, but not listed on the agenda. Each speaker is limited to three minutes. 
 

Page V. CONSENT CALENDAR   
 

1 1. Approval of the Draft PC & RB Minutes of December 14, 2023 
 

3 2. Board Attendance Record   
 

5 3. Written Report of Ex Parte Communications 
 

 VI. REGULAR CALENDAR  
 

7 1. Fiscal Year 2022-23 Audit Report (Pat Cabrera & Jennifer Luong) 
Staff recommends that the Programs and Administration Committee review and forward the FY 
22-23 audit report to the Waste Management Authority Board for acceptance and filing. 
 
Staff recommends that the Recycling Board accept and file the FY 22-23 audit report. 
 

101 2. Board Rules of Procedure for Teleconferencing (Timothy Burroughs) 
Staff recommends that the Board evaluate the amendments to the Rules of Procedure adopted 
on December 8, 2022.   
 

 VII. MEMBER COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

 VIII. ADJOURNMENT – TO FEBRUARY 8, 2024 AT 6:00 P.M. 

 



DRAFT 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

AND 
ALAMEDA COUNTY RECYCLING BOARD 

Thursday, December 14, 2023 

6:00 P.M. 

IN PERSON MEETING LOCATION: 
STOPWASTE BOARD ROOM 

1537 WEBSTER STREET, OAKLAND, CA 

I. CALL TO ORDER
President McKaughan called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Timothy Burroughs explained the
meeting process being utilized during the meeting. A link to the process is available here: Virtual-
Meetings-Instructions.

II. ROLL CALL OF ATTENDANCE
Eric Havel, Environmental Educator
Darby Hoover, Environmental Organization
Tracy Jensen, ACWMA
Dan Kalb, ACWMA
Chiman Lee, Recycling Programs
Grace Liao, Source Reduction Specialist
Laura McKaughan, Recycling Materials Processing Industry (President)
David Mourra, ACWMA
Fred Simon, ACWMA
Jeff Wang, ACWMA
Talia Wise, Solid Waste Industry Representative

Staff Present: 
Timothy Burroughs, Executive Director 
Justin Lehrer, Operations Manager 
Alma Freeman, Communications Manager 
Arliss Dunn, Clerk of the Board 
Farand Kan, Deputy County Counsel 

III. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE PRESIDENT
There were none.

IV. OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no public comments.

V. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of the Draft Joint WMA, EC, and PC & RB Minutes of November 15, 2023

2. Board Attendance Record

3. Written Report of Ex Parte Communication

There were no public comments for the Consent Calendar. Board member Jensen moved for 
approval of the Consent Calendar. Board member Kalb seconded, and the motion carried 10-0-1. 
The Clerk called the roll: 1

http://www.stopwaste.org/virtual-meetings
http://www.stopwaste.org/virtual-meetings


(Ayes: Havel, Hoover, Jensen, Kalb, Lee, Liao, McKaughan, Mourra, Simon, Wise. Nays: None. 
Abstain: Wang. None. Absent:). 
 
VI. REGULAR CALENDAR 
 

1. Reusable Foodware Project Update (Justin Lehrer) 
This item is for information only. 

 

Timothy Burroughs introduced the item. Justin Lehrer provided an update on recent local policy 
development, pilot projects, and other program activities related to reusable foodware systems in 
Alameda County. A link to the report and the presentation is available here: Reusable-Foodware-
Update-Presentation.pdf 
 

Additional time was provided to the Board for discussion and for clarifying questions. An audio link 
to the discussion is available here: Reusable-Foodware-Update-Discussion. There were no public 
comments for this item. President McKaughan thanked staff for a very exciting and informative 
presentation. 
 

2. 2024 Meeting Schedule (Timothy Burroughs) 
That the Planning Committee and Recycling Board approve the 2024 meeting 
schedule. 

 

Timothy Burroughs provided a brief overview of the staff report. A link to the report is available 
here: 2024-Meeting-Schedule-memo.pdf. Board member Jensen stated that she would work with 
Board Clerk Arliss Dunn to host the December 12, 2024 meeting in Alameda. An audio link to the 
discussion is available here: 2024-Meeting-Schedule. 
 

There were no public comments on this item. Board member Jensen moved approval of the 2024 
meeting schedule with the amendment to host the December 12, 2024 meeting in Alameda. Board 
member McKaughan seconded, and the motion carried 11-0. The Clerk called the roll: 
(Ayes: Havel, Hoover, Jensen, Kalb, Lee, Liao, McKaughan, Mourra, Simon, Wang, Wise. Nays: None. 
Abstain: None. Absent: None). 
 

3. Election of Officers for 2024 (Timothy Burroughs) 
That the Recycling Board elect Officers for calendar year 2024. 

 

Timothy Burroughs provided an overview of the staff report. A link to the report is available here: 
2024-Election-of-Officers.pdf. The Board was provided additional time for discussion and clarifying 
questions. An audio link to the discussion is available here: 2024-Elections-of-Officers.There were 
no public comments on this item. Board member Jensen nominated Board member Wang to serve 
as Second Vice President. There were no further nominations. Board member McKaughan moved 
approval of the slate of officers for 2024; Board member Kalb, President, Board member Havel, First 
Vice President, and Board member Wang, Second Vice President. Board member Lee seconded. The 
motion carried 11-0. The Clerk called the roll: 
(Ayes: Havel, Hoover, Jensen, Kalb, Lee, Liao, McKaughan, Mourra, Simon, Wang, Wise. Nays: None. 
Abstain: None. Absent: None). 
 

Timothy Burroughs thanked President McKaughan for her service as President in 2023 and 
presented her with a reusable gift. 
 

 VII. MEMBER COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
Mr. Burroughs informed the Board that the January 11, 2204 meeting may consist of a light agenda to 
include the agency financial audit and a discussion of the Rules of Procedure. He encouraged Board 
members to consider if they might attend in person or via teleconference.  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT – TO PC & RB MEETING – JANUARY 11, 2024 AT 4:00 P.M. 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
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2023 - ALAMEDA COUNTY RECYCLING BOARD ATTENDANCE 

J F M A M J J A S O N D 

REGULAR MEMBERS 

B. Carling X X X X X X 

E. Havel X X X X X X X X X X 

X 

D. Hoover X X X X X X A X X X X 

T. Jensen X X X X X X X A X X X 

D. Kalb X X X X I X I X A X X 

C. Lee X A X X A X A X X X X 

G. Liao X A X X X X X X X X X 

L. McKaughan X X X X X X X X X A X 

D. Mourra X X X X X A X X X X X 

F. Simon X X X X X X X X X X X 

J. Wang X X A X A 

T. Wise X X A X X X X X X X X 

F. Zermeño X 

INTERIM APPOINTEES 

S. Young X 

M. Hannon X 

Measure D: Subsection 64.130, F: Recycling Board members shall attend at least three 
fourths (3/4) of the regular meetings within a given calendar year. At such time, as a 
member has been absent from more than one fourth (1/4) of the regular meetings in a 
calendar year, or from two (2) consecutive such meetings, her or his seat on the Recycling 
Board shall be considered vacant. 

X=Attended A=Absent I=Absent - Interim Appointed 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 
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DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

January 11, 2024

Recycling Board 

Timothy Burroughs, Executive Director 

Written Reports of Ex Parte Communications 

BACKGROUND 

Section 64.130 (Q)(1)(b) of the Alameda County Charter requires that full written disclosure of ex 
parte communications be entered in the Recycling Board's official record.  At the June 19, 1991 
meeting of the Recycling Board, the Board approved the recommendation of Legal Counsel that 
such reports be placed on the consent calendar as a way of entering them into the Board's official 
record.  The Board at that time also requested that staff develop a standard form for the reporting 
of such communications.  A standard form for the reporting of ex parte communications has since 
been developed and distributed to Board members. 

At the December 9, 1999 meeting of the Recycling Board, the Board adopted the following 
language:   

Ex parte communication report forms should be submitted only for ex parte communications 
that are made after the matter has been put on the Recycling Board’s agenda, giving as much public 
notice as possible. 

Per the previously adopted policy, all such reports received will be placed on the consent calendar 
of the next regularly scheduled Recycling Board meeting. 
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DATE: January 11, 2024 

TO: Programs and Administration Committee 
Planning Committee/Recycling Board 

FROM: Pat Cabrera, Administrative Services Director 

Jennifer Luong, Financial Services Manager 

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2022-23 Audit Report 

SUMMARY 

California state law requires that the Agency issue a complete set of financial statements annually 
and that an independent firm of certified public accountants audit the financial reports. The 
Agency’s fiscal year (FY) closed on June 30, 2023, at which time staff prepared the financials in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and the firm of Badawi & 
Associates audited the reports. At the January 11, 2024, meetings of the Programs and 
Administration Committee and the Planning Committee/Recycling Board, staff will present the audit 
report for review and acceptance.  

DISCUSSION 

The auditor’s responsibility is to express opinions on the financial statements. The annual audit 
report for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, is attached. The Agency received a clean audit 
opinion for FY 22-23 from the auditors. In addition, there were no findings of internal control 
weaknesses, nor any minor “housekeeping” issues raised.  

The Discussion and Analysis section of the report (pages 5-8) provides an overview of the Agency’s 
financial activities for the year. The report includes a total Agency (WMA, Recycling Board, and 
Energy Council) Statement of Net Position (page 10); total Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position (page 12); and total Statement of Cash Flows (page 13). On pages 47-55, 
the report shows the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position by Board and by fund. The two Boards and the Energy Council are distinct 
legal entities (but function as one agency); therefore, these statements are of particular importance 
as they separately outline each entity’s respective financial activity for the year. 

Revenue and Expenses 
The audit report shows total revenues of approximately $31.4M compared to the revenues 
identified in the budget of $33.4M. This difference is primarily due to the timing of external funding 
reimbursements, which had not accrued by the time the fiscal year had closed. FY 22-23 revenues 
increased 5.7% compared to FY 21-22. The increase is primarily due to higher tonnage fee revenue 
of $0.4M resulting from one time tonnage collected at the landfill. Additionally, multi-family 
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incentive grant revenue increased by $0.6M. Interest income increased by $0.6M due to higher 
market interest rates earned on short-term investments. Total expenses were $33.7M, a 9.3% 
reduction compared to budgeted expenses of $36.1M. The decrease is primarily due to the timing of 
grant reimbursements and HHW reimbursements.  
 

Net Position 

The Agency’s total net position is $68M (WMA’s portion is $61M or 89.9%; Recycling Board’s is 
$6.4M or 9.4%; and Energy Council’s is $477,374 or 0.7%). The total net position is comprised of 
$13.9M for the net investment in capital assets (land, buildings, furnishings, and equipment), $9.1M 
reserved and designated for specific purposes by the Board, $17M for the Household Hazardous 
Waste Fund, $5.5M for encumbrances, and $6.5M for non-operational costs, such as depreciation, 
pension, and post-retirement health obligations, leaving an available fund balance of $15.4M. This 
is consistent with the staff’s year-end estimates.  
 
The audit reports show an overall decrease in the Agency’s net position of approximately $5.3M or 
7.2% compared to FY 21-22, due primarily to an increase in the Agency’s pension liability. This 
amount will fluctuate based primarily on CalPERS’ investment performance. For example, in FY 21-
22 the Agency was over 100% funded and the pension liability was zero. Pension funded status at 
the end of FY 22-23 was 93.7% (see footnote on page 40 of the report). The information provided in 
the schedule on that page pertains to the pooled plan of which the Agency is a participant. The 
Agency’s policy is to achieve at least a 95% pension funded status, which requires additional 
discretionary payments periodically.  
 
As shown on page 44 of the audit report, the Agency’s funded status with respect to its post-
retirement medical plan is at 107% as of the last actuarial valuation on June 30, 2023. Accounting 
policies with respect to pension and other post-retirement benefits continue to be a focus for public 
sector entities. Through prudent spending of fund balances and reserves we remain financially solid 
in both areas. 
 
Additional Information 
Staff submitted its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for FY 22-23 and received the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) “Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting.” Staff will submit the FY 22-23 audit to the GFOA again for award 
consideration. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Programs and Administration Committee review and forward the FY 22-
23 audit report to the Waste Management Authority Board for acceptance and filing. 
 
Staff recommends that the Recycling Board accept and file the FY 22-23 audit report. 
 
Attachment:   
 
Annual Audit Report and Financial Statements for the years ended June 2022 and 2023. 
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December , 2023 

To: The Alameda County Waste Management Authority, The Alameda County 
Source Reduction and Recycling Board and the Energy Council. 

In accordance with state law, all local governments are required to publish a 
complete set of financial statements, presented in conformance with General 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Therefore, we are pleased to submit the 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for StopWaste for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2023. 

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and 
fairness of the information, including all disclosures, rest with the Agency to the 
best of the Agency staff’s knowledge and belief. The enclosed data are accurate 
in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to fairly present 
the financial position and results of the operations of the various entities of 
StopWaste. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT 
Badawi & Associates Certified Public Accountants, a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants, has audited the Agency’s financial statements. Immediately 
following the Independent Auditor’s Report, the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A) segment provides a narrative analysis of the basic financial 
statements and should be read in conjunction with them. 

PROFILE OF THE AGENCY 
The Agency, operating as StopWaste, is comprised of three separate legal 
entities: The Alameda County Waste Management Authority, the Alameda 
County Source Reduction and Recycling Board, and the Energy Council. 

The Alameda County Waste Management Authority 

The Alameda County Waste Management Authority (WMA) is a public agency 
formed in 1976 by a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement among the County of 
Alameda, each of the fourteen cities within the county, and two sanitary districts 
that provide refuse and recycling collection services. The Authority has a 
seventeen-member board composed of elected officials appointed by each 
member agency. 
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The Authority is responsible for preparation of the Alameda County Integrated Waste 
Management Plan (CoIWMP) and Alameda County Hazardous Waste Management Plan. It 
manages a long-range program for development of solid waste facilities and offers a wide 
variety of other programs in the areas of source reduction and recycling, market development, 
technical assistance, and public education. Funding is provided by per-ton disposal and waste 
import mitigation fees. 

The Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board 

The Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board (RB) was created in 1990 by the 
voters of Alameda County through a ballot initiative, “Measure D.” The eleven-member board 
includes six citizen experts appointed by the Alameda County Board of Supervisors and five 
elected officials from the Alameda County Waste Management Authority. 

The Recycling Board is responsible for programs that promote source reduction, residential and 
commercial recycling, recycled product procurement and market development. Program 
funding is provided from a per-ton disposal surcharge at the Altamont and Vasco Road landfills. 

The Energy Council 

The Energy Council (EC) was formed in 2013 as a Joint Powers Authority to seek funding on 
behalf of its member agencies to develop and implement programs and policies that reduce 
energy demand, increase energy efficiency, advance the use of clean, efficient, and renewable 
resources, and help create climate resilient communities. The Energy Council assists its member 
agencies by strengthening staff capacity, providing technical expertise, and securing funds to 
implement local sustainable energy strategies. The Board includes elected officials from fifteen 
member agencies. Funding for projects comes from external sources, mainly grants, and 
contracts. 

Collectively these entities operate as StopWaste, a single integrated Agency that helps local 
governments, businesses, schools, and residents reduce waste, develop, and expand markets 
for recycled materials, provide technical and implementation assistance to increase recycling, 
motivate people to make recycling and waste reduction part of their everyday routines, 
increase energy efficiency, and increase community resilience to climate change. 

GOVERNANCE 
The Agency is governed by the three entities as described above. However, all Agency staff, 
including the Executive Director, are employees of the WMA. The Recycling Board and the 
Energy Council have Memorandums of Understanding with the WMA to provide staff support 
for their respective programmatic functions and activities. 

15



The Executive Director 
provides executive and 
administrative oversight of all 
Agency operations and 
receives policy direction from 
the three Boards. 

StopWaste has 17 Member 
Agencies serving 1.7 million 
people: the County of 
Alameda, each of the fourteen 
cities in the county, and two 
sanitary districts that provide 
refuse and recycling collection 
services. 

MISSION AND VISION 
StopWaste is committed to advancing environmental sustainability and building healthy, 
climate resilient communities in Alameda County. Since 1976, the Agency has helped residents, 
businesses, schools, and local jurisdictions become better stewards of the environment by 
preventing waste, saving energy and water, and taking action to increase community resilience 
to climate change. 

Goals 

Informed by decades of experience and deep partnerships, our work focuses on these 
overarching long-term goals that provide a road map to achieve our vision. 
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Our Approach 

Our Aims influence how we work and inform 
our long-term direction and strategy. 
Together they also reflect our values and how 
we work with our partners and community. 
We apply a holistic approach to waste 
prevention and resource management, 
integrating multiple benefits such as economic 
development, water and energy savings, cost 
savings for residents and businesses, and 
advancing equity and public health. Our 
services include grant making, technical 
assistance, community engagement, public 
outreach campaigns, energy incentive 
programs, and ordinance development and 
enforcement, among others. Furthermore, 
throughout our history, we have relied on the 
expertise of our staff and strong partnerships 
with local governments, schools, businesses, 
nonprofits, and communities in order to 
achieve our mission. 

ECONOMIC CONDITIONS 

The Agency’s largest source of discretionary revenue comes from tonnage fees collected from 
landfill disposal. The majority of the fees (see below) are collected primarily at the Altamont 
and Vasco landfills, although other landfills outside of Alameda County that receive waste 
materials from within Alameda County also remit fees to the Agency. The Agency also collects 
tonnage fees through its enforcement efforts. One of the most significant factors affecting 
tonnage trends is the current economic health; a robust economy tends to reflect higher 
disposal and a stagnant or declining economy generates less waste and therefore less tonnage 
related revenue. 

In addition to StopWaste and member agency efforts, other factors such as population and 
changes in materials markets also impact tonnage and associated revenue. Tonnage revenue 
over the past few years has remained relatively steady. In cases where there have been 
increases it has generally been the result of one-time and/or out-of-county disposal. The 
agency saw a 4% variance over projected tonnages in FY 22-23, which can be attributed to one-
time special projects at the Altamont and Vasco landfills. 

Other sources of discretionary revenues include: wind revenue of $372,000 through an 
agreement with NextEra Energy Inc., property-related revenue totaling approximately 
$160,000, and interest revenue of $1,002,523 that fluctuates based on current yields. 
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With respect to other non-discretionary revenues, particularly the grants and contracts 
received by the Energy Council, funding continues to be available, and the agreements are 
multi-year commitments which have already been approved. 

Fees 

StopWaste levies various fees that help fund compliance with state and local waste reduction 
mandates. These fees (with the exception of the Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) fees fund 
approximately 93% of discretionary revenue and are as follows: 

 AB 939 Facility Fee - $4.34 per ton disposed. Levied pursuant to AB 939 on all Alameda 
County solid waste landfilled within California and all waste landfilled in Alameda 
County. Funds countywide recycling, waste prevention and planning efforts. 

 HHW Fee - $2.15 per ton disposed. Levied, pursuant to AB 939, on wastes disposed in 
Alameda County and all wastes generated in Alameda County transferred through an in- 
county solid waste facility for out-of-county disposal. Additionally, in 2014 the Authority 
Board adopted a separate HHW annual fee which was amended in 2019 and sets the 
annual fee at $6.64 per residential property unit through June 30, 2024, paid via 
property taxes to fund program continuation. 

 Measure D Landfill Surcharge - $8.23 per ton is collected on waste disposed at the 
Vasco Road and Altamont Landfills. About 55% is allocated to participating Alameda 
County municipalities for waste reduction efforts and about 45% for specified 
countywide waste reduction programs including grants to nonprofit organizations, 
administered by StopWaste. 

 Import Mitigation Fee - $4.53 per ton is collected on all wastes landfilled in Alameda 
County that originate out-of-county. 

Long Term Financial Planning 

Staff present an annual multi-year forecast to the Agency’s board members through the 
Programs and Administration Committee of the WMA Board and the Planning 
Committee/Recycling Board (see below). This information is presented prior to budget 
development (for the upcoming fiscal year) in alignment with the Board-approved guiding 
principles and with a continued focus on cost synergies. In  FY 22-23 the Agency presented a 
comprehensive fiscal forecast and fund balance/reserve analysis based on several revenue 
scenarios to help determine the appropriate level of discretionary spending each fiscal year. 

These models will be updated each fiscal year to reflect actual revenues and expenditures, the 
fund balance the Agency should maintain in order to be prepared to fill any future budgetary 
gaps, and the projected impact this information will have on the Agency’s long-term financial 
planning. This forecast is based on the Agency’s most current trends. As always, the Agency will 
make financial adjustments as necessary to ensure fiscal solvency, either through revenue 
increases, expenditure reductions or a combination of both. 
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Multi-Year Forecast Through FY 25-26 

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES 
Reserve Policy 

The Agency has established various reserves that require the appropriate Board’s approval to 
establish or abolish. The following provides a brief description of these reserves. 

The Organics Processing Development Reserve 

The Organics Processing Development (OPD) Reserve was established in 1998 for the 
development or advancement of in-county organics processing capacity or facilities. Multiple 
organics facilities have gone through the CoIWMP amendment and conformance finding 
process and are in various stages of development with no need for Agency financing. Given 
that, the Agency continues to allocate some portion of the OPD funds, when needed, toward 
projects that promote increased participation in organic waste reduction programs. 

Pension Liability Reserve and Unfunded Liability Policy 

The Pension Liability Reserve was established in 2015 to partially offset the Agency’s unfunded 
pension liability. In addition, on March 25, 2020, the Authority Board adopted a funded status 
goal to achieve at least a 95% pension funded status with the option of being fully funded by 
the beginning of FY 25-26. In fact, the Agency achieved 103% in Fiscal Year 2021-22. However, 
based on current market conditions and CalPERS’s estimated investment yields, the Agency’s 
funded status is projected to total 89.6% by the end of fiscal year 2023.  We continue to 
monitor our funded status and make discretionary payments as appropriate. 
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Fiscal Reserve 

The Fiscal Reserve was established to offset any declines in revenue that could occur during the 
year. 

Five-Year Audit/Other Studies Reserve 

This reserve was established to pay for the periodic Recycling Board five-year audit and other 
studies that may be required on an infrequent basis. Funding for this reserve comes from the 
available fund balance. 

Building Maintenance Reserves 

This reserve was established to pay for capital costs related to the Agency’s building. The 
Agency budgets for repairs and other costs related to the building in the annual operating 
budget. However, given that the building is now more than 15 years old, it is fiscally prudent to 
maintain a reserve for larger capital repairs. Funding for this reserve comes from available fund 
balance. 

Investment Policy 

The Agency has established investment policies to invest funds not required for its immediate 
needs in a manner that will provide the maximum security of its assets while meeting its cash 
flow demands and conforming to all statutes governing the investment of such funds. The 
policies establish guidelines for the investment of available funds. The Agency’s funds are 
invested in both the Alameda County Investment Pool (63.39%) and the State Local Agency 
Investment Fund (36.61%). 

Internal Controls 

The Agency has an obligation to safeguard its assets, both financial and physical (infrastructure 
and other property). In order to protect these assets, a series of checks and balances have been 
established. These checks and balances serve to mitigate fraud, loss, and other misuse of 
Agency resources. 
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MAJOR INITIATIVES AND KEY PROGRAM ACTIVITIES 
Upstream Waste Prevention 

StopWaste’s programs are designed to elevate 
upstream waste prevention as a critical strategy 
for reducing waste and greenhouse gas 
emissions, reducing demand on solid waste 
collection and disposal systems, and catalyzing 
innovation and sustainable economic 
development. Our long-running waste prevention 
grants program, as well as technical assistance for 
businesses, local governments and nonprofits, 
and community outreach and education 
programs, provide a strong foundation to build 
upon. StopWaste works with partners and 
elected officials locally and in Sacramento to 
advance and support legislation that aligns with 
our waste prevention efforts, such as bills to 
promote reusable foodware and extended producer responsibility encouraging manufacturers 
to create material-efficient products that are designed for future reuse or repair. 

StopWaste awards grants to businesses and nonprofits working on innovative, replicable ways 
to advance waste prevention and reduction through reuse, repair, and redistribution of 
products and materials that would otherwise enter the waste stream. We’ve increased our 
grant funding in two areas: reducing plastic waste and single-use disposables through reusable 
foodware infrastructure, and food waste prevention and recovery. Additionally, we support 
coordination and innovation in the reuse and repair sector by convening grantees and other 
local business and nonprofit leaders via The Reuse and Repair Stakeholder Workgroup. 

We are supporting our jurisdictions with a model ordinance that member agencies can use as a 
policy tool to minimize single-use disposable foodware and elevate reusables as an alternative. 
Our staff will continue to provide support and technical assistance to stores to help them 
comply with the Reusable Bag Ordinance, which experienced adoption setbacks due to the 
pandemic. We are investigating new ways to improve our outreach and support to work more 
effectively with stores to comply and motivate customers to bring their own bags. 

Food represents the largest component by weight of what ends up in our landfills. When food is 
landfilled, it creates harmful methane gas emissions, contributing to climate change and 
negative health impacts. While diverting food from our landfills and into compost facilities is a 
requirement of SB 1383, preventing food waste at its source is an ongoing priority for our 
Agency. We employ a variety of approaches to achieve this goal, including our ongoing Stop 
Food Waste outreach campaign, as well as on-the-ground community efforts to curb wasted 
food. 
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The Agency also takes a multi-pronged approach to food recovery work that involves engaging 
and supporting the growing network of food recovery organizations in the county. We are 
increasing our grant funding to food waste prevention and recovery organizations and are 
launching a new community food system partnership grant focus area to support community-
based organizations working on systemic issues facing our food system. As part of this effort, 
we continue to convene the Alameda County Food Recovery Network, made up of a wide range 
of community groups, including faith-based organizations and housing agencies.  

Our schools program brings a holistic curriculum to students across the county, helping youth 
to understand the value of conserving resources and empowering them to take action to 
reduce waste and fight climate change.  

Member Agency Support & SB 1383  

Supporting our member agencies to achieve 
their sustainability and climate goals is a core 
focus for StopWaste. We do this in several 
ways, including policy support and 
enforcement, outreach and technical 
assistance, and convening and networking. We 
bring staff from Alameda County cities, the 
county government, and sanitary districts 
together monthly to take on shared challenges 
and advance solutions that often benefit from 
countywide coordination. A continuing priority 
is supporting member agencies to meet the 
requirements of the Short-Lived Climate 
Pollutant Strategy (SB 1383), a sweeping State law that took effect in 2022 that calls for 
diverting 75 percent of organics from landfill and recovering 20 percent of edible surplus food 
for human consumption by 2025 statewide.  StopWaste helped member agencies develop and 
adopt a local ordinance, known as the Organics Reduction and Recycling Ordinance (ORRO), 
that serves as the required enforcement mechanism for SB 1383 and enables countywide 
consistency and coordination.  

With the ORRO in place, we will continue with technical assistance, outreach, and enforcement 
activities to help our member agencies comply with state law.  

In the last year, we conducted an Alameda County Edible Food Recovery Capacity Study on 
behalf of our jurisdictions to learn more about food recovery operations and assess capacity to 
recover and distribute more donated edible surplus food. The results inform grant funding 
priorities and collection and distribution investment.  

In this fiscal year, we are making a strategic one-time investment to conduct a waste 
characterization study. This will enable us to better understand the composition and processing 
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of waste streams and inform our collective work to prevent waste, increase recycling 
transparency, and meet our landfill obsolescence goals. 

Community Engagement 

Engaging with the community is at the intersection of everything we do and the values we hold. 
This means engaging residents with tools and resources they need to take action, as well as 
prioritizing community partner feedback and input so that we are better able to support 
systemic solutions to intersectional challenges. 

Building on our long-running sustainable gardening 
and compost program, we are reorienting our work 
to strengthen partnerships with urban farms, food 
growers, and faith communities to share and 
collaborate around a healthy food system. We are 
piloting Compost Hubs to provide a place for the 
public to pick up free compost and learn how to build 
healthy soil, grow food, and connect with a local 
community resource. The aim is to scale these 
compost hubs across the county, with StopWaste 
providing technical assistance to support cities and 
farms. We will continue our long-running StopWaste 
Environmental Education Training (SWEET) program, 
empowering people with the tools and resources 
they need to educate communities on food waste 
prevention, compost use and contamination, and healthy food systems.  

StopWaste works with our school partners to engage and empower youth to take action to 
reduce waste and to become better stewards of the environment. We will continue with hybrid 
environmental and climate action-based programming and will resume our in-person programs 
of transfer station field trips and sorting and food waste prevention in the cafeteria and 
classroom. We also collaborate with our school districts to implement local government climate 
action plans, and to integrate equity and sustainability into curricula. 

StopWaste continues to provide outreach on the Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) program, 
overseeing a broad awareness media campaign prioritizing easy drop off of HHW materials at 
one of four county facilities. We have improved the experience through an online registration 
system in both English and Spanish. Across all our projects, we’re expanding access through 
translation, and applying an equity lens so that our tools and services are culturally sensitive 
and relevant. 
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Energy & Health 

Decarbonizing our existing buildings and homes 
through energy efficiency and electrification is 
necessary to meet California’s climate goals, and if 
done right, has the potential to deliver a range of 
quality-of-life improvements to residents such as 
better indoor air quality and increased comfort. 

Our largest programs in this area are delivered 
through the Bay Area Regional Energy Network 
(BayREN), which is a partnership between 
StopWaste, the Association of Bay Area 
Governments, and eight other county representatives 
in the Bay Area. These programs leverage several 
tools to promote electrification in both single-family 
and multi-family homes as well as commercial and 
municipal buildings, including outreach and 
education to contractors and property owners, 
rebates and incentives, energy efficiency codes and 
standards, and legislative support. 

We continue to implement our award-winning Bay Area Multifamily Building Enhancements 
Program (BAMBE), which since 2013 has offered cash rebates and no-cost energy consulting for 
multifamily properties that undertake energy and water upgrades. 

Compost and Land 

StopWaste has been promoting sustainable land management in our communities for decades 
through gardening and compost programming, training, resources and standards for landscape 
professionals, advocacy for sustainable landscape management at the state level, and support 
to jurisdictions on meeting state requirements of the Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance 
(WELO). While we will still be doing much of this work, our focus is shifting to SB 1383 support, 
and leveraging those requirements to get compost to where it is needed most: to support 
agriculture to feed people experiencing food insecurity and to increase soil carbon 
sequestration. This work also assists jurisdictions in meeting climate action goals, while working 
toward SB 1383 procurement targets. 

Circular Economy Solutions 

An overarching mission of our work is to help stimulate markets for products that are resource 
efficient, low-carbon, and derived from materials that may otherwise go to waste. Many of our 
existing program areas serve as the scaffolding for this work. Our grant making helps incubate 
solutions and services to advance food recovery and distribution, deconstruction and reuse of 
building materials, and repair and redistribution of a range of products. 
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As part of the American Rescue Act’s Build Back Better Regional Challenge, the U.S. Economic 
Development Administration awarded StopWaste a $500,000 planning grant to work on 
innovative circular solutions in the building materials and construction industry. The grant 
enables StopWaste and its regional partners to rethink our construction industry, bringing to 
market new technologies and products that support material efficiency and the manufacturing 
of high-value products from the region’s waste streams.  

The Agency is comprised of highly motivated and dedicated staff. In addition to the traditional 
means of recruiting and retaining a solid workforce through competitive compensation and 
flexible works hours, the Agency has invested in a variety of team building and Diversity, Equity 
and Inclusion trainings as well as providing mentoring and coaching to staff. Moreover, we will 
support our long-term Aims by building a more robust evaluation framework to improve our 
programs and their positive impact in our communities. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Agency maintains all legally required insurance coverage. General liability, professional 
liability, property coverage, crime coverage, and errors and omissions coverage are provided by 
Alliant Insurance Services. Worker’s compensation coverage is provided through the State 
Compensation Insurance Fund. 

BUDGETARY CONTROLS 

The annual budget is balanced when revenues plus fund balance or reserves if applicable, are 
equal or greater than expenditures excluding depreciation and amortization. 

The financial management software system provides budgetary controls by monitoring 
spending within budgeted amounts. Each fund/project is controlled within an expenditure 
category such as labor, professional services, materials and supplies. The Agency cannot exceed 
its authorized budget total for a fiscal year without a board approved budget amendment. 

Reallocation of the budget for a fund/project among its line-item expenses allows the 
fund/project to have financial flexibility within the funds management systems. Approval by the 
Executive Director or Administrative Services Director is required for the reallocation of funds 
between funds/projects. 

BUDGET 

The Agency adopts annual budgets and employs long-term planning as a framework for fiscal 
decisions. The financial planning and annual budget sets levels of operational (discretionary) 
and grants expenditures that may be made during the budget period. Throughout the year, 
program managers are responsible for implementing the budget and monitoring budget 
performance, in coordination with the Administrative Services Director. 
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The annual budget for FY 22-23 was adopted by the RB on May 12, 2022, and by the WMA and 
the EC on May 25, 2022, and supports the Agency’s Mission and long-term Aims. The total 
budget for FY 22-23 was $36,037,380. The WMA portion is $14,482,393; the RB portion is 
$12,770,652; and the EC portion $8,784,435. Discretionary expenditures total $13,211,617.

MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS AND AWARDS
Since 1990, StopWaste has helped reduce the amount of garbage going to landfills by nearly 
half in Alameda County, even with a population increase of 25 percent during that time. The 
agency spearheaded the largest (and one of the first) food scrap collection programs in the 
country, and with local partners, helped launch the green building movement in California. By 
meeting the Bay- Friendly standards that StopWaste developed, which are now managed by the 
nonprofit organization ReScape, California local landscapes save 86 million gallons of water 
annually.

StopWaste has received numerous awards and recognition over the years. Its office was the 
first renovation in the nation to receive the LEED platinum certification from the US Green 
Building Council. In recent years, StopWaste school and community outreach programs and 
individual staff have been acknowledged with the Governor’s Economic and Environmental 
Leadership award, as well as staff and programmatic excellence awards from the California 
Resource Recovery Association, the California Product Stewardship Council and the City and 
County Communications and Marketing Association.

Throughout its history, StopWaste has relied on the expertise of our staff, and strong 
partnerships with local governments, businesses, and communities to achieve our mission. The 
holistic approach to waste reduction and resource management, integrating multiple benefits 
such as water and energy savings, cost savings, and public health, leads to a more sustainable 
Alameda County. We continually explore innovative and experimental approaches, emphasizing 
the social and economic well-being of our communities and plan to continue making a positive 
impact in our communities for years to come.

Respectfully submitted,

Pat Cabrera,
Administrative Services Director

Timothy Burroughs,
Executive Director  

imothy Burroug
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
of Alameda County Waste Management Authority 
Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycing Board 
and Energy Council 
Oakland, California 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Alameda County Waste Management 
Authority, Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycing Board and Energy Council (Agency) as of and 
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the Agency, as of June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Agency and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

The Agency’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and 
for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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To the Board of Directors 
of Alameda County Waste Management Authority 
Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycing Board 
and Energy Council 
Oakland, California 
Page Two 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Agency’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, defined benefit pension plan information, and OPEB plan information on pages 5 to 
8 and pages 38 to 44 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
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To the Board of Directors 
of Alameda County Waste Management Authority 
Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycing Board 
and Energy Council 
Oakland, California 
Page Three 

appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Agency’s basic financial statements. The individual nonmajor fund financial statements are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

Other Information Included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report. The other information comprises the Introductory Section and the Statistical Section but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements 
do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In 
connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, 
or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we 
conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to 
describe it in our report. 

Badawi & Associates, CPAs 
Berkeley, California 
December 11, 2023
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ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANGEMENT AUTHORITY, ALAMEDA COUNTY SOURCE REDUCTION AND 
RECYLING BOARD, AND ENERGY COUNCIL (“STOPWASTE”)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

This section presents management’s analysis of the Alameda County Waste Management Authority’s, the Alameda County
Source Reduction and Recycling Board's, and the Energy Council's (herein referred to as the Agency) financial condition and
activities as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview
of the Agency which is commonly known and identified as “StopWaste.” To obtain a complete understanding of the
Agency’s financial condition, this document should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the accompanying
notes to those financial statements.

ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS 

The Agency operating as StopWaste is comprised of three separate legal entities: The Alameda County Waste Management
Authority, the Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board, and the Energy Council. StopWaste helps local
governments, businesses, schools and residents with projects and initiatives that improve recycling and reduce waste; develop
and expand markets for recycled materials, provide technical and implementation assistance to improve recycling; motivate
people to make recycling and waste reduction part of their everyday routines, increase energy efficiency, and increase
community resilience to climate change.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Agency operates as an Enterprise Fund and presents its financial statements using the full accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when cash is
received or paid.

The Agency's financial reports include three basic financial statements: the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statements of Cash Flows. 

The Statement of Net Position includes information about the Agency’s assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Agency is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the Agency’s operations over the
course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed during the year. All of the fiscal year’s revenues
and expenses are accounted for in this statement.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the Agency’s cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash
resulting from operations, investing and financing activities. The statement shows what the sources and uses of cash were and
what the change in the cash balance was during the fiscal year.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements:  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the basic financial statements. The notes to the basic Financial Statements can be found on pages 14-36 of 
this report.
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Table 1 - Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2023 2022 Change ($) Change (%) 2021 Change ($) Change  (%)
Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 57,166,871$        56,729,519$        437,352$         0.8% 55,177,675$   1,551,844$      2.8%
Other Current Assets 4,084,778            3,396,962            687,816           20.2% 3,089,481       307,481           10.0%
Capital Assets 13,941,887          14,012,696          (70,809)           -0.5% 14,073,978     (61,282)           -0.4%
Net OPEB Asset 383,981               383,981           N/A 1,182,570       (1,182,570)      -100.0%
Net Pension Asset 3,088,927            (3,088,927)      0% 3,088,927        N/A
Lease Receivable 5,651,830            5,995,477            (343,647)         -5.7% 6,333,877       (338,400)         -5.3%
Total Assets 81,229,347          83,223,581          (1,994,234)      -2.4% 79,857,581     3,366,000        4.2%

Deferred Outflows 4,929,930            6,111,281            (1,181,351)      -19.3% 4,196,410       1,914,871        45.6%

Liabilities
Current Liabilities 8,068,548            8,203,858            (135,310)         -1.6% 6,798,663       1,405,195        20.7%
Net Pension Liability              2,529,081 2,529,081 N/A         3,158,266 (3,158,266) -100.0%
Accrued Expenses                 126,722 (126,722) -100.0%            147,486 (20,764) -14.1%
Accrued Vacation, non-current 54,245                 49,194                 5,051               10.3% 53,133            (3,939)             -7.4%
Net OPEB Liability 507,008               (507,008)         -100.0% -                      507,008           N/A
Total Liabilities 10,651,874          8,886,782            1,765,092        19.9% 10,157,548     (1,270,766)      -12.5%

Deferred Inflows 7,446,012            7,111,456            334,556           4.7% 8,920,910       (1,809,454)      -20.3%

Net Position:
Investment in Capital Assets 13,941,887          14,012,696          (70,809)           -0.5% 14,073,978     (61,282)           -0.4%
Restricted for Pension and OPEB 383,981               3,088,927            (2,704,946)      -87.6%
Unrestricted

Unavailable 6,508,346            11,775,219          (5,266,873)      -44.7% 3,484,483       8,290,736        237.9%
Reserves 9,056,191            9,056,191            -                      0.0% 9,200,191       (144,000)         -1.6%
Encumbrances 5,520,412            4,232,961            1,287,451        30.4% 3,559,889       673,072           18.9%
Net Position Available Fund Balance (Core) 15,035,038          14,313,449          721,589           5.0% 17,846,501     (3,533,052)      -19.8%
Net Position Available Fund Balance (HHW) 16,963,967          16,403,720          560,247           3.4% 16,297,908     105,812           0.6%
Net position Available Fund Balance Other 651,569               453,461               198,108           43.7% 512,583          (59,122)           -11.5%
Total Unrestricted 53,735,523          56,235,001          (2,499,478)      -4.4% 50,901,555     5,333,446        10.5%

Total Net Position 68,061,391$        73,336,624$        (5,275,233)$    -7.2% 64,975,533$   5,272,164$      8.1%

Deferred Pension Outflows, Net Pension Liability and Deferred Pension Inflows reflect the Agency's proportionate share of CalPERS' Miscellaneous Risk Pool Pension Liabilities and 
Assets as of the annual measurement date. These amounts are impacted largely by investment performance, actuarial assumptions and gains or losses.

June 30, 2023

The Agency’s net position increased by $8.4 million in 2022 from 2021.  This year-over-year upturm comes from the change in net position as recorded in the Statement of Activities 
and which flows through the Statement of Net Position. Net position increased as a result of revenue exceeding expenses and increased in pension valuation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents increased $1.5 million (2.8%) in 2022 from 2021. This was primarily due to revenues exceeding expenses by $1.9 million and $.3 million in current asset. 

The Agency’s net position decreased by $5.3 million in 2023 from 2022.  This year-over-year upturn comes from the change in net position as recorded in the Statement of Activities 
and which flows through the Statement of Net Position. Net position decreased mainly due to an increase in pension liability.  The Agency pension liability  increased due to market 
volatility which impacted pension performance.
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Table 2 - Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Period Ended June 30 2023 2022 Change ($) Change (%) 2021 Change ($) Change  (%)
Operating Revenues

In County Facility Fees 5,207,544$        5,136,391$        71,153$            1.4% 5,219,013$              (82,622)$         -1.6%
Measure D Municipality Allocation 4,937,106          4,875,709          61,397              1.3% 4,946,515                (70,806)           -1.4%
Other Tonnage Fees 4,937,084          4,875,735          61,349              1.3% 4,946,516                (70,781)           -1.4%
Other Counties Mitigation Fees 397,953             349,542             48,411              13.8% 384,943                   (35,401)           -9.2%
Out of County Facility Fees 994,910             968,879             26,031              2.7% 388,909                   579,970           149.1%
Household Hazardous Waste Fees and Grants           6,685,017           6,600,553 84,464 1.3%                 6,625,485 (24,932) -0.4%
Other Fees and Revenue 279,754             204,976             74,778              36.5% 255,800                   (50,824)           -19.9%

23,439,368        23,011,785        427,583            1.9% 22,767,181              244,604           1.1%
Non-operating Revenues

Energy Council 6,114,947          5,508,425          606,522            11.0% 6,380,164                (871,739)         -13.7%
Externally Funded 194,031             271,327             (77,296)             -28.5% 89,147                     182,180           204.4%
Interest Income 1,002,523          364,243             638,280            175.2% 497,493                   (133,250)         -26.8%
Other Income 599,914             501,045             98,869              19.7% 711,901                   (210,856)         0.0%

7,911,415          6,645,040          1,266,375         19.1% 7,678,705                (1,033,665)      -13.5%

Total Revenues 31,350,783        29,656,825        1,693,958         5.7% 30,445,886              (789,061)         -2.6%

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Benefits 9,660,409          9,078,149          582,260            6.4% 8,402,533                675,616           8.0%
Pension Expense (income) 7,054,295          (6,494,526)        13,548,821       -208.6% 1,796,759                (8,291,285)      -461.5%
Program Expenses 19,552,843        18,396,728        1,156,115         6.3% 17,714,598              682,130           3.9%
Legal and Accounting 188,795             142,841             45,954              32.2% 302,124                   (159,283)         -52.7%
Board Expenses 555                    (555)                  -100.0% 60,535                     (59,980)           -99.1%
Depreciation Expense 169,674             171,987             (2,313)               -1.3% 176,235                   (4,248)             -2.4%

Total Expenses 36,626,016        21,295,734        15,330,282       72.0% 28,452,784              (7,157,050)      -25.2%

Change in Net Position (5,275,233)        8,361,091          (13,636,324)      -163.1% 1,993,102                6,367,989        319.5%

Net Position - Beginning 73,336,624        64,975,533        8,361,091         13.9% 62,982,431              1,993,102        3.2%
Net Position - Ending 68,061,391$      73,336,624$      (5,275,233)$      -7.2% 64,975,533$            8,361,091$      12.9%

Request for information

The Agency's financial statements are designed to provide a general overview its finances and to show accountability of the resources it receives and expends. If you have questions 
about this report, or need additional information, contact the Administrative Services Director or Financial Services Manager at the StopWaste office, located at 1537 Webster Street, 
Oakland CA 94612.

June 30, 2023

Total operation expenses increased by $1.8 million (6.4,%) in 2023 from 2022. This change was primarily due to an increase of $0.6m in salary and $1m in Household Hazardous 
Waste disbursements. Overall total expenses increased by $15.3 million (72%) mainly due to pension valuation of $13.5m.  Pension liability fluctuated due to market conditions as of 
June 30, 2022.

The Agency's total revenue increased by $1.7m (5.7%) in 2023 from 2022. This change is primarily due to higher grant revenue collected from the Heat-Pump grant of $0.3m and 
combined other grants of $0.2m. Additionally, an increase of $0.6m in Interest Income and an increase of $0.4m in tonnage and fees has also contributed to the increase in total 
revenue.

Total revenue decreased by $.8m (2.6%) in 2022 from 2021, primarity due to lower revenue from the Multi-Family grant, a decrease of $.13m in Interest Income, a decrease of $.21m 
in Other Income, offset by increase of $.18m in Externally fund revenue and $.2m in Operating Revenue.

Total operation expenses increased by $1.1 million (4.3,%) in 2022 from 2021. This was primarily due to increase of $.7m in salary and $.7m in Household Hazardous Waste 
disbursements. Overall total expenses decreased by $7.2 million (25.2%) mainly due to pension valuation of $8.3m.  Pension valuations changed due to market conditions as of June 30, 
2021.
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CAPITAL ASSET 

Most of the Agency’s annual assets and annual expenditures relate to the repair and
maintenance of the rental property and water tank located on Flynn Rd in Livermore to benefit the tenant.
Funding for capital projects comes primarily from tenants.  Agency does not have infrastruture.

The changes in capital assets in fiscal years 2023 and 2022 were primarily a result of
expenditures for infrastructure offset by depreciation each year. Depreciation expense for fiscal
years 2023 and 2022 was approximately $169,674 and $171,987 in each year, respectively.
See additional information on capital assets in Note 3 page 21

The changes in capital assets in fiscal years 2022 and 2021 were primarily a result of
expenditures for fixed asset offset by depreciation each year. Depreciation expense for fiscal
years 2022 and 2021 was approximately $171,987 and $176,236 in each year, respectively.
See additional information on capital assets in Note 3 page 21.

Fixed Assets for 2023
Balances at Balances at Balances at Balances at

Description 7/1/2020 Additions 6/30/2021 Additions 6/30/2022 Additions 6/30/2023

Capital assets not being depreciated,

Land 9,230,922 9,230,922 9,230,922 9,230,922
      Total 9,230,922 0 9,230,922 0 9,230,922 0 9,230,922

Capital assets being depreciated:

Building & Improvement 6,555,018 41,595 6,596,613 104,772 6,701,385 88,636 6,790,021
Furniture and Equipment: 359,546 359,546 5,933 365,479 10,230 375,709

   Total Buildings 6,914,564 41,595 6,956,159 110,705 7,066,864 98,866 7,165,730

Total Capital Assets 16,145,486 41,595 16,187,081 110,705 16,297,786 98,866 16,396,652

Less Accum. Dep:
Building & Improvement (1,771,229) (138,564) (1,909,793) (140,102) (2,049,895) (142,659) (2,192,554)
Furniture & Equip (165,640) (37,672) (203,312) (31,884) (235,197) (27,015) (262,212)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,936,869) (176,236) (2,113,105) (171,987) (2,285,091) (169,674) (2,454,766)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 4,977,696 (134,641) 4,843,056 (61,282) 4,781,774 (70,808) 4,710,965

  Total capital asset, net 14,208,618 (134,641) 14,073,978 (61,282) 14,012,696 (70,808) 13,941,887
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2023 2022
ASSETS
Current assets:
    Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) 57,166,871$    56,729,519$    
    Receivables:
        Accounts receivable 2,746,220 2,189,578
        Interest receivable 332,712 84,974
        Grants receivable 624,141 648,351
    Prepaid expenses 38,059 135,659
    Leases receivable (Note 4) 343,646           338,400

    Total current assets 61,251,649      60,126,481

Noncurrent assets:
Leases receivable (Note 4) 5,651,830        5,995,477
Net OPEB asset (Note 8) 383,981 -
Net pension asset (Note 7) -                   3,088,927
Capital assets:
    Nondepreciable capital assets 9,230,922 9,230,922
    Capital Assets - net of accumulated depreciation (Note 3) 4,710,965 4,781,774

Total capital assets 13,941,887 14,012,696

    Total noncurrent assets 19,977,698 23,097,100

    Total assets 81,229,347      83,223,581

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
    Related to OPEB (Note 7) 881,292 1,029,617
    Related to pension (Note 7) 4,048,638 5,081,664

  Total deferred outflows of resources 4,929,930 6,111,281

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County 
Source Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023 and 2022

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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2023 2022

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
    Accounts payable 4,411,317$      3,462,202$      
    Accrued expenses 536,167 472,699
    Accrued vacation (Note 6) 488,208 442,750
    Due to other governmental agencies (Note 5) 1,248,400 1,195,934
    Unearned revenue 1,384,456 2,630,273

    Total current liabilities 8,068,548        8,203,858

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
    Net OPEB liability (Note 8) -                   507,008
    Net pension liability (Note 7) 2,529,081 -
    Accrued expenses -                   126,722
    Accrued vacation (Note 6) 54,245             49,194

    Total noncurrent liabilities 2,583,326        682,924

    Total liabilities 10,651,874      8,886,782

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
    Related to Leases (Note 4) 5,995,476 6,333,877
    Related to OPEB (Note 8) 1,206,910 152,372
    Related to Pension (Note 7) 243,626 625,207

  Total deferred inflows of resources 7,446,012        7,111,456

NET POSITION
    Net investment in capital assets 13,941,887 14,012,696
    Restricted for Pension and OPEB 383,981 3,088,927
    Unrestricted 53,735,523 56,235,001

    Total net position 68,061,391$   73,336,624$   

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County 
Source Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023 and 2022

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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2023 2022
OPERATING REVENUES

    Disposal and waste import mitigation fees 16,474,462$    16,206,257$    
    Household hazardous waste fees 6,685,017 6,600,553
    Other 279,889 204,976

Total operating revenues 23,439,368      23,011,786

OPERATING EXPENSES
     Salaries and benefits 9,660,409        9,078,149
     Pension expense (income) 7,054,295        (6,494,526)
     Program expenses 19,552,843      18,396,728
     Legal and accounting 188,795           142,841
     Board expenses -                       555
     Depreciation (Note 3)  169,674           171,987

Total operating expenses 36,626,016      21,295,734

Operating income (loss) (13,186,648)     1,716,052

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
    Grants 6,315,925        5,779,751
    Interest income 1,002,659        364,243
    Other income 592,831           501,045

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net 7,911,415        6,645,039

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (5,275,233)       8,361,091

NET POSITION:
    Beginning of year 73,336,624      64,975,533

    End of year 68,061,391$    73,336,624$    

For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

See accompanying notes to financial statements
12
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2023 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
    Cash received from customers and users 21,636,909$   24,413,568$   
    Cash payments to suppliers (18,453,662) (18,683,513)
    Cash payments to employees for wages and benefits (10,334,917) (10,592,748)

Net cash used by operating activities (7,151,670)       (4,862,693)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
    Grants 6,340,135 5,637,612

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 6,340,135        5,637,612

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND 

  RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
    Acquisition of capital assets (70,809) (110,705)
    Payments received for leases 416,457 503,469

Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 345,648 392,764

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
    Interest income 903,239 384,161

Net cash provided by investing activities 903,239 384,161

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 437,352 1,551,844

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
    Beginning of year 56,729,519 55,177,675

    End of year 57,166,871$    56,729,519$    

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH AND 
  CASH EQUIVALENTS PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
    Operating income (loss) (13,186,648)$  1,716,052$     
    Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by

Operating activities:
Depreciation 169,674 171,987
(Increase) decrease in assets :

Accounts receivable (556,642) (62,122)
Prepaid expenses 97,600 (101,653)
OPEB asset (890,989) 1,689,578

 Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 949,115 (162,205)
Accrued expenses (63,254) 96,958
Amount due to other governments 52,466 (22,927)
Unearned revenue (1,245,817) 1,463,904
Accrued vacation 50,509 4,762
Net pension liabilities, deferred inflows and deferred outflows 7,472,316 (9,657,027)

    Net cash used by operating activities (7,151,670)$     (4,862,693)$     

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling 
Board and Energy Council are three separate legal entities: 

The Alameda County Waste Management Authority (Agency) is a public agency formed in 1976 by a 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement among the County of Alameda, each of the fourteen cities within 
the county, and two sanitary Districts that provide refuse and recycling collection services. The 
Agency has a seventeen-member board composed of elected officials appointed by each member 
agency. 

The Agency is responsible for preparation of the Alameda County Integrated Waste Management Plan 
and Alameda County Hazardous Waste Management Plan. It manages a long-range program for 
development of solid waste facilities and offers a wide variety of other programs in the areas of source 
reduction and recycling, market development, technical assistance and public education. Funding is 
provided by per ton disposal and waste import mitigation fees. 

The Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board (Recycling Board) was created in 1990 by 
the voters of Alameda County through a ballot initiative, “Measure D”. The eleven member board 
includes six citizen experts appointed by the Alameda County Board of Supervisors and five elected 
officials from the Alameda County Waste Management Authority. 

The Recycling Board is responsible for programs that promote source reduction, residential and 
commercial recycling, recycled product procurement and market development. Program funding is 
provided from a per ton disposal surcharge at the Altamont and Vasco Road landfills. 

The Energy Council was formed in Spring 2013 as a Joint Powers Agency to seek funding on behalf of 
its member agencies to develop and implement programs and policies that reduce energy demand, 
increase energy efficiency, advance the use of clean, efficient and renewable resources, and help create 
climate resilient communities. The Energy Council assists its members in strengthening staff capacity, 
providing technical expertise, and securing funds to implement local sustainable energy strategies. To 
date, fifteen members serve on the Board. Funding for projects comes from external sources, mainly 
grants. 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The Agency’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is 
the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards 
followed by governmental entities in the United States of America. 

The Agency accounts for its activities as a proprietary fund. The financial statements are accounted for 
on a flow of economic resources measurement focus, using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method all assets, deferred outflows and inflows of resources, and liabilities associated with 
operations are included on the balance sheet, revenues are recorded as earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as 
soon as all eligibility requirements are met.  
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus, Continued 

The Agency distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues include revenues generated from the primary operations of the fund; operating expenses 
include all expenses essential to the primary operations of the fund.  Nonoperating revenue and 
expenses include revenue and expenses not associated with the Agency’s normal business of waste 
management.  Non-operating revenues and expenses include interest income and expense, gain and 
loss on disposition of property and equipment, grants, and other peripheral activities.  Although 
capital contributions, as well as special and extraordinary items when there are any, are shown 
separately, technically they are subcategories of non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Compensated Absences 

Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be liquidated with expendable available 
financial resources is reported as an expense and a liability. Generally, earned vacation may be 
accumulated up to a maximum of 400 hours by all personnel. Agency employees do not receive 
compensation for accumulated sick leave unless they retire, in which case they have the option of 
cashing out half of their sick leave or converting sick leave to service credit. To date all but one eligible 
employees have chosen the latter option. Accordingly, no sick leave has been accrued. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Agency considers all highly liquid investments 
purchased with an original maturity to three months or less to be cash equivalents, including the 
Agency investment in the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and the Alameda 
County investment pool. 

Fair Value Measurements 

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Agency categorizes 
its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in measuring fair value 
are observable in the market. 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that are 
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. 

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the fair 
value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input that is 
significant to the entire measurement. 
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued

Net Position

In the statements of net position, net position is classified in the following categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of the capital assets.  

Restricted Net Position – This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, laws 
or regulations of other governments.  

Unrestricted Net Position – This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition of “net 
investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position.” 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America, requires management, at the date of the financial statements, to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of 
contingent assets, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and liabilities as well as the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

Pension 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Agency’s 
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions 
from the Plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as it is reported by 
CalPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at 
fair value. 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as 
an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, Continued 

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
Agency’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when 
currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and 
asset information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are 
used: 

Valuation Date   June 30, 2023 
Measurement Date   June 30, 2023 
Measurement Period   July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 

New Pronouncements 

In 2023, the Agency adopted new accounting standards in order to conform to the following 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements: 

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations – The primary objectives of this Statement are 
to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate 
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements of 
this statement did not apply to the Agency for the current fiscal year. 

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements – The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 
addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). 
As used in this Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) 
contracts with an operator (a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public 
services by conveying control of the right to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as 
infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. The requirements of this statement did not apply to the 
Agency for the current fiscal year. 

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-based Information Technology Arrangements – This Statement 
provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information 
technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) 
defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an 
intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization 
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a 
SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. The requirements of this statement 
did not apply to the Agency for the current fiscal year. 
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Agency maintains cash and investments as summarized below: 

A. Deposits 

The carrying amount of the Agency's deposits as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $5,150,418 and 
$5,462,214  respectively.  The bank balance of deposits as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $5,585,294 and 
$5,914,675, of which $1,000,000 was covered by federal depository insurance. The difference between 
the carrying amount and the bank balance is primarily due to checks outstanding at June 30, 2023 and 
2022.  The remaining balance above $1,000,000 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institutions in the Agency’s name. 

B. Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a depositor will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter-party (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a 
depositor will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of another party.   

The California Government Code and the Agency's investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the 
following provisions for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governments units by pledging securities in an undivided 
collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged 
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public 
agencies. 

C. Investments 

The Agency pools its cash and investments for investment purposes. Certain cash and investments are 
segregated for specific purposes.  

Under the provisions of the Agency’s investment policy, and in accordance with California 
Government Code, the following investments are authorized: 
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued  

C. Investments, continued 

Investments are stated at fair value. Included in investment income (loss) on the accompanying 
statement of activities and changes in net position is the net change in the fair value of investments, 
which consists of realized gains or losses and the unrealized appreciation (depreciation) of those 
investments.  

Measurement of the fair value of investments is based upon quoted market prices, if available. The 
estimated fair value of investments that have no quoted market price is determined based on 
equivalent yields for such securities or on securities of comparable maturity, quality, and type as 
obtained from market makers. 

The Agency is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated 
by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of 
California. The Agency’s investments with LAIF at June 30, 2023, include a portion of the pool funds 
invested in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. These investments include the following: 

Structured Notes – are debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash flow 
characteristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon one or more 
indices and/or have embedded forwards or options. 

Asset-Backed Securities – the bulk of which are mortgage-backed securities, entitle their 
purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal and 
interest repayments from a pool of mortgages (such as Collateralized Mortgage Obligations) or 
credit card receivables. 

As of June 30, 2023, LAIF had invested of 2.78% the pool investment funds in Structured Notes and 
Asset-Backed Securities as compared to 1.88% on June 30, 2022 and 2.31% on June 30, 2021. A fair 
value factor of 0.984828499 was used to calculate the fair value of the investments in LAIF as of June 
30, 2023 and a fair value factor of  0.987125414 was used to calculate the fair value of the investments 
in LAIF as of June 30, 2022. 

The Agency is considered a voluntary participant in the Alameda County Investment Pool (Pool). 
Funds are invested pursuant to the annual investment policy established by the Treasurer and 
approved by the Board of Supervisors. The objectives of the policy are, in order of priority: 
preservation of capital, liquidity, and yield. The policy addresses the soundness of financial 
institutions in which the County deposits funds, the types of investment instruments and the 
percentage of the portfolio, which may be invested in certain instruments, as permitted by Section 
53600 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California. Authorized instruments in which the 
Treasurer can invest include U.S. Treasury securities, banker’s acceptances, federal, state and local 
government securities, commercial paper, medium-term corporate notes, negotiable certificates of 
deposit, local agency investment fund, California asset management program, and money market 
mutual funds. The Alameda County Investment Pool does not publish a fair value factor, so the Pool 
is stated at cost. 
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued  

D. Interest Rate Risk  

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its 
fair value to changes in market interest rates.  The Agency’s investment policy follows the Code as it 
relates to limits on investment maturities as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising 
from increasing interest rates. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Agency’s investments (including investments 
held by bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows 
the distribution of the Agency’s investments by maturity as of June 30, 2023 and 2022: 

D. Credit Risk  

This is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. It is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized credit rating 
organization.  The State and County investment pools are not rated. 

E. Concentration of Credit Risk 

The California Government Code limits the amount the Agency may invest in any one issuer, with the 
exception of U.S. Treasury obligations, U.S. Agency securities and LAIF. The Agency has no 
investments in any one issuer (other than external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total 
Agency investments. 

F. Investment Valuation 

Investments are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Recurring fair value measurements, are 
those that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements require or permit in the 
statement of net position at the end of each reporting period. Fair value measurements are categorized 
based on the valuation inputs used to measure an asset’s fair value: Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in 
active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 
inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, there were no investments that were subject to leveling. 

20
50
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Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
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3. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is provided on the straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets. The estimated useful lives of the assets 
and capitalization thresholds are listed below: 

The Agency’s capital assets at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2023 consisted of:  

4. LEASES 

The Agency leases attachment space on a building, and various uses of land to others. In fiscal years 
ending June 30, 2023 and 2022 $543,363 and $503,469 were recognized as revenues from the leases, 
including $135,202, and $117,989, respectively, over the minimum payments reflected in the lease 
receivables and associated interest.  

Balance Balance Balance
June 30, 2021 Additions June 30, 2022 Additions June 30, 2023

Capital assets not being depreciated, 
Land 9,230,922        -$                 9,230,922$   -$                 9,230,922$   

Total 9,230,922        -                   9,230,922     -                   9,230,922

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 6,596,614        104,771        6,701,385     88,636          6,790,021
Furniture and equipment 359,546           5,933            365,479        10,230          375,709

Total assets being depreciated 6,956,160        110,704        7,066,864     98,866          7,165,730

Total capital assets 16,187,082      110,704        16,297,786   98,866          16,396,652

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (1,909,793)       (140,102)      (2,049,895)   (142,659)      (2,192,554)
Furniture and equipment (203,312)          (31,884)        (235,197)      (27,015)        (262,212)

Total accumulated depreciation (2,113,105) (171,986) (2,285,091) (169,674) (2,454,766)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 4,843,056 (61,282) 4,781,774 (70,808) 4,710,965

Total capital assets, net 14,073,978      (61,282)$      14,012,696$ (70,808)$      13,941,887$ 
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5. LEASES, Continued 

The following is a summary of the various leases that make up the balance of lease receivables: 

Building Lease 

The Agency owns a building with a lattice tower attached. In 2009, the Agency entered into an 
agreement with the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) for the leasing of space on 
the tower. BAAQMD and the Agency amended the agreement in 2016, extending the lease to March 
2027. Payments in the amount of $1,667 are due quarterly and increase annually every January based 
on the Consumer Price Index for the preceding April. The interest rate on the lease is 1.1% 

Tower Lease 

The Agency entered into a 10-year agreement commencing October 2015 with a telecommunications 
company (Company) to lease land upon which the Company would build towers and a solar array. 
Monthly payments of $3,873 increase by 3% annually each November. The interest rate on the lease is 
3%. 

Trench Leases 

The Agency owns land upon which a telecommunications company installed an electrical trench. 
Several telecommunications companies share space in the trench. Agreements with these companies 
commenced in 2016 and last through various ending dates in 2026-2029. Quarterly payments range 
from $8,749.73 to $8,817.69 and increase annually based on the San Francisco/Bay Area Consumer 
Price Index for the preceding April. 

Windpower Lease 

In 2014, the Agency amended an easement agreement with a windpower company for a 30-year lease 
commencing April 2015. Payments are based off a percentage of the energy sales of the windpower 
company for the period with a minimum payment of 5% (the Royalty Rate) of what the windpower 
company would have received for sales of 75,600 mega-watt-hours. Minimum payments are due 
annually on February 15th in the amount of $226,800 for 2022. The Royalty Rate increases to 5.5% in 
2023, 6% in 2031 and 7% in 2041. 
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4. LEASES, CONTINUED 

The following table displays the future payments on the lease receivables: 

5. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 

The Agency provides direct funding to member agencies through the mandated allocation of funds to 
municipalities. The majority of the balance in Due to Other Governmental Agencies is comprised of 
Measure D amounts. Measure D requires the Agency to disburse 50% of Measure D fees on a per 
capita basis to municipalities for the continuation and expansion of municipal recycling programs. On 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, $1,248,400 and $1,195,934, respectively, represented the last quarter of Measure 
D fees that had not yet been remitted. 

6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES  

A summary of long-term liability activities for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2023 were as follows: 
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS 

A. Plan Descriptions 

All qualified permanent, limited term and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan) administered by 
the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of individual rate 
plans (benefit tiers) within a risk pool. Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any employer rate 
plan of the pool. Accordingly, rate plans within the pool are not separate plans under GASB Statement 
No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the risk pool. The Agency 
sponsors two rate plans (miscellaneous classic and miscellaneous PEPRA). Benefit provisions under 
the Plan are established by State statute and Agency resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available 
reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions 
and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website. 

B. Benefits Provided 

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments and 
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  Benefits are based 
on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment.  Members with five years of 
total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible 
for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.  The death benefit is one of the following: the 
Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit.  The cost 
of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law. 

The rate plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023 and 2022 are summarized as follows: 
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued 

C. Contributions 

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer 
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and are 
effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.  Funding contributions for the Plan are 
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS.  The actuarially determined rate 
is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  The Agency is required to 
contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of 
employees. 

The Agency’s contributions to the Plan for the measurement periods ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 and 
were $1,753,407 and $2,141,339, respectively.  

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

As of June 30, 2023, and 2022, the Agency reported a net pension liability (asset) for its proportionate 
share of the Plan’s net pension liability (asset) of $2,529,081 and ($3,088,927), respectively. 

The Agency’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the total net 
pension liability of the Plan. The net pension liability of the Plan for the fiscal year 2023 is measured as 
of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2021 rolled forward to June 30, 2022 using 
standard update procedures. The net pension liability of the Plan for the fiscal year 2022 was 
measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by actuarial valuations as of June 30, 2020 rolled forward to June 30, 
2021 using standard update procedures.  The Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
was based on the Agency’s plan liability and asset-related information where available, and 
proportional allocations of plan amounts as of the valuation date where not available. The Agency’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the plan as of measurement dates June 30, 2020, 
2021, and 2022 was as follows: 
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued 

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions, Continued 

For the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Agency recognized pension expense (income) of 
$7,054,295 and $(6,494,526), respectively. At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Agency reported deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following 
sources: 

$784,842 and $1,753,407 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the years 
ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as 
follows: 

Fiscal Year
Ending June 30: 2023 2022

2023  $   611,703 
2024  $  1,070,958       641,089 
2025      1,039,289       705,094 
2026          626,582       745,164 
2027          283,341                   -   
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued 

E. Actuarial Assumptions  

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2021 and 2020 actuarial valuations were determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions: 

F. Discount Rate  

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90% and 7.15% for the Plan for the 
measurement periods ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily 
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position 
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. 
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of 
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. A detailed report testing these 
projections can be obtained from the CalPERS website. 

2023 2022
Valuation Date June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020
Measurement Date June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost 

Method
Entry-Age Normal Cost 

Method
Actuarial Assumptions: 
Discount rate 6.90% 7.15%
Inflation 2.30% 2.50%
Projected salary increase Varies by entry age and 

service
Varies by entry age and 

service
Investment rate of return 6.90% 7.15%
Mortality rate table Derived by CalPERS 

membership data for all 
funds

Derived by CalPERS 
membership data for all 

funds
Post-retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.3% 

until Purchasing Power 
Protection Allowance Floor 

on Purchasing Power 
applies

Contract COLA up to 2.5% 
until Purchasing Power 

Protection Allowance Floor 
on Purchasing Power 

applies

(1) The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The rates incorporate generational
mortality to capture ongoing mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP 2020 published by the Society of
Actuaries. For more details, please refer to the 2021 experience study report that can be found on the CalPERS
website.
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued 

F. Discount Rate, Continued 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return for the measurement period ended June 30, 2022, 
CalPERS took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund 
cash flows. Projected returns for all asset classes are estimated and, combined with risk estimates, are 
used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term. The discount rate used to discount 
liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return.  

The expected real rates of return by asset class were as follows: 

In determining the long-term expected rate of return calculations for the measurement period ended 
June 30, 2021, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market return expectations as 
well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical and forecasted information for all the 
funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 
10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal 
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. 
The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that 
arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term 
and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate 
calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued 

F. Discount Rate, Continued 

The expected real rates of return by asset class were as follows: 

G. Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Agency’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, 
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the Agency’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point 
lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate: 

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued CalPERS financial reports. 

I. Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2023 and 2022 the Agency reported a payable of $0 for outstanding amount of required 
contributions to the pension plan. 
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7. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS, Continued 

J. Deferred Compensation Plan 

In addition to the CalPERS pension plan, the Agency also offers a deferred compensation 457 plan (457 
Plan). The 457 Plan is a defined contribution pension plan held in trust at ICMA which administers the 
457 Plan. Participation in the plan is voluntary for limited term employees who have worked at the 
Agency for longer than one year and for regular employees who have completed their probationary 
period. The Agency matches employee contributions up to a maximum of $3,572 annually. 
Contributions vest immediately. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the Agency contributed 
$132,548 to the 457 Plan and had payables to the 457 Plan of $2,404 as of June 30, 2023. During the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the Agency contributed $142,267 to the 457 Plan and had payables to 
the 457 Plan of $2,822 as of June 30, 2022. 

8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN 

A. Plan Description 

The Agency participates in the CALPERS sponsored health care plan, an agent multiple-employer 
defined benefit plan, for its employees and long service retirees and/or their dependents. In addition, 
the Agency sponsors and administers dental and vision coverage for its employees and/or their 
dependents. 

The Agency provides post-retirement health care defined benefits to eligible retirees. Prior to January 
1, 2007, eligible employees retiring at or after age 50 with a minimum of 5 years of service credit, may 
opt to continue health care coverage, including spouse and dependents, with a monthly premium paid 
by the Agency. Vesting requirements have been implemented for employees hired after January 1, 
2007. 

The Agency has elected to set up a trust fund with the California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust 
(CERBT) to fund their plan. The Agency does not have a stand-alone financial statement to their plan. 
Financial activity of the plan will be included as part of the CERBT’s financial statements available 
through their executive office. 

B. Employees Covered 

As of the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation, the following current and former employees were covered 
by the benefit terms under the OPEB Plan: 
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8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN, Continued 

B. Employees Covered, Continued 

As of the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation used for the June 30, 2022 measurement date, the following 
active and former employees were covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB Plan: 

C. Contributions 

The OPEB Plan and its contribution requirements are established by and may be amended by the 
Agency. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution. For the fiscal 
years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, the Agency’s contributions were $0. 

D. Net OPEB Liability 

The Agency’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the total OPEB 
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuations dated June 
30, 2023 and June 30, 2021, respectively, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions: 
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8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN, Continued 

D. Net OPEB Liability, Continued 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building- 
block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB plan 
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined 
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return 
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and 
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the 
following table: 

E. Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75 percent.  The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Agency contributions will be made at rates 
equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current 
active and inactive employees and beneficiaries.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
OPEB liability. 
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8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN, Continued 

F. Changes in the OPEB Liability  

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as 
follows: 

Total OPEB 
Liability (a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position (b)

Net OPEB 
Liability/(Asset) 

(c) = (a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2022
(Measurement Date June 30, 2022) 6,202,019$         5,695,011$         507,008$             

Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Service cost 243,772               -                        243,772
Interest 417,601               -                        417,601
Expected Investment Income -                        375,803               (375,803)
Administrative expenses -                        (4,923)                  4,923
Actual Benefit Payments from Trust (250,208)              (250,208)              -
Expected minus Actual Benefit Payments (24,230)                -                        (24,230)
Difference between expected and actual experience (1,084,072)          -                        (1,084,072)
Changes in Assumption (81,106)                -                        (81,106)
Contributions - employer -                        -                        -
Net investment income -                        (7,926)                  7,926

Net Changes (778,243)              112,746               (890,989)
Balance at June 30, 2023
(Measurement Date June 30, 2023) 5,423,776$         5,807,757$         (383,981)$           

Increase (Decrease)
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Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN, Continued

F. Changes in the OPEB Liability, Continued

The changes in the net OPEB liability for the OPEB Plan for the year ended June 30, 2022 are as
follows:

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Agency if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate,
for measurement periods ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 respectively:
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN, Continued

I. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Agency if it were calculated using health care cost
trend rates that are one percentage point lower (3%) or one percentage point higher (5%) than the
current rate, for measurement periods ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

J. Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in
OPEB expense systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in OPEB expense for the year
the gain or loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense.  The
recognition period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

8. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN, Continued 

K. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/ (Inflows) of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, the Agency recognized OPEB expense 
(income) of $311,873 and $280,485, respectively. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the 
Agency reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as expense as 
follows: 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Agency carries commercial insurance coverage for its general liability, property damage, and 
workers’ compensation insurance. The Agency also carries public officials and employee liability 
insurance, as well as employee dishonesty and forgery/alteration insurance, for those employees who 
have check signing Agency, as well as those employees who handle funds in any manner. 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected 
and actual experience in the 
measurement of TOL

 $      337,116  $   1,028,212  $      387,467  $        33,294 

Changes in assumptions          140,618          178,698          156,781          119,078 

Net difference between 
projected and actual earnings 

         403,558                      -            485,369                      -   

TOTAL  $      881,292  $   1,206,910  $   1,029,617  $      152,372 

2023 2022
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT, Continued 

The following types of loss risks are covered through commercial insurance policies as follows: 

During the past three fiscal years none of the above programs of protection have had settlements or 
judgments that exceeded insured coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insured 
liability coverage from coverage in the prior year. 

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Agency’s Federal and State grant programs are subject to the provisions of the Federal Single 
Audit Act as amended and applicable State requirements. In addition, these programs are still subject 
to further examinations by the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be 
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time. The Agency expects such 
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.  

The Agency is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the 
Agency attorney’s there are no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on 
the financial position of the Agency. 
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

1. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS 

A. Schedule of the Agency’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - Last 10 Years* 

Fiscal Year 2023 2022 2021 2020

Measurement Date 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019

Proportion of the net pension 
liability 0.02190% -0.05711% 0.02903% 0.02838%

Proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 2,529,081$  (3,088,927)$ 3,158,266$  2,907,825$  

Covered payroll 5,592,448$  5,479,378$  5,113,721$  4,820,484$  

Proportionate Share of the net 
pension liability as percentage 
of covered payroll 45.22% -56.37% 61.76% 60.32%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability (1) 76.68% 88.29% 75.10% 75.26%

Fiscal Year 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

Measurement Date 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014

Proportion of the net pension 
liability 0.01892% 0.06308% 0.15144% 0.06748% 0.05627%

Proportionate share of the net 
pension liability 1,822,849$  6,256,106$  5,260,783$  4,631,507$  3,501,440$  

Covered payroll 4,672,775$  4,652,096$  4,638,785$  4,477,977$  4,307,146$  

Proportionate Share of the net 
pension liability as percentage 
of covered payroll 39.01% 134.48% 113.41% 103.43% 81.29%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability (1) 75.26% 73.31% 74.06% 78.40% 79.82%

Notes to Schedule:
*Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only nine years are shown.

The CalPERS mortality assumptions were adjusted in fiscal year 2019.

The CalPERS discount rate was increased from 7.5% to 7.65% in fiscal year 2016, decreased from 7.65% to 7.15% in 
fiscal year 2018, and then decreased from 7.15% to 6.9% in fiscal year 2023.

(1) - This represents the Plan's (PERF C) information and not the Agency's funded status. As of the June 30, 2022 
measurement date, the funded ratio of the Agency was 93.7% per the CalPERS actuarial valuation dated June 30, 
2021 for the Agency's Miscellaneous plan.
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

1. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued

B. Schedule of Plan Contributions – Last 10 Years*

41
71



Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

1. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS, Continued 

B. Schedule of Plan Contributions – Last 10 Years*, Continued 

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

2. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN  

A. Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Last 10 Years* 
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

2. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN

A. Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios – Last 10 Years*, Continued

Measurement Period 2018 2017
Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost 123,264$   119,965$      
Interest on the total OPEB liability 301,530  284,652

Differences between expected and actual 
experience (41,414)   -

Changes of assumptions -  -
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (161,807)    (130,383)
Net change in total OPEB liability 221,573  274,234
Total OPEB liability - beginning 4,347,552   4,073,318

Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 4,569,125$   4,347,552$   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - employer 203,221$   392,105$      

Net investment income 376,820  416,097
Differences between expected and actual 

experience -  -
Benefit payments, including refunds of 

employee contributions (203,221)    (130,383)
Administrative expense (4,245)  (3,522)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 372,575  674,297
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 4,712,349   4,038,052

Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 5,084,924$   4,712,349$   

Net OPEB liability/(asset) - ending (a) - (b) (515,799)$     (364,797)$     

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total OPEB liability 111% 108%

Covered-employee payroll 4,672,775$   4,652,096$   

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll -11.04% -7.84%
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Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council 
Required Supplementary Information 
For the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

2. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN, Continued

B. Schedule of Contributions - Last 10 Years*

Fiscal Year Ended June 30: 2023 2022

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) -$    -$     
Contributions in relation to the ADC - -

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$    -$     

Covered-employee payroll 6,590,669$ 5,821,465$ 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.00% 0.00%

Fiscal Year Ended June 30: 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) 35,684$       263,790$    238,948$    203,221$    142,105$    
Contributions in relation to the ADC (35,684)  (263,790)  (238,948)    (203,221)     (392,105)

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$    -$  -$  -$  (250,000)$   

Covered-employee payroll 5,597,351$ 5,113,721$ 4,820,484$ 4,672,775$ 4,652,096$ 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 0.64% 5.16% 4.96% 4.35% 8.43%

Notes to Schedule:

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:
Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Actuarial Cost Method Entry age actuarial cost method
Amortization Method/Period Level percentage of pay

Amortization in Years 30 years
Asset Valuation Method Investment gains and losses spread over 5-year period

Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 2.75% per year

Discount Rate 7.00%
Healthcare cost-trend rates 4.00%

Mortality Mortality assumptions are based on the 2017 CalPERS 
Active Mortality for Miscellaneous Employees table 

* Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable.  Future years' information will
be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.
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Household
Solid Mitigation Hazardous
waste Fees Waste 2023 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,006,274$       8,517,650$        20,979,281$ 46,503,205$     43,716,337$ 
Accounts receivable 988,449 431,669 489,664 1,909,782 1,408,589
Interest Receivable 53,713 99,818 120,367 273,898 70,337
Prepaid Expenses 38,059 - - 38,059 135,659
Grants Receivable 12,830 - - 12,830 232,219
Leases Receivable - 343,646 - 343,646 338,400

Total Current Assets 18,099,325          9,392,783           21,589,312    49,081,420        45,901,541

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 590,587               13,351,300         -                     13,941,887        14,012,696
Net OPEB Asset 383,981 - - 383,981 -
Net Pension Asset - - - - 3,088,927
Due from Other Funds 1,549,734 12,977 - 1,562,711 4,074,502
Leases Receivable - 5,651,830 - 5,651,830 5,995,477

Total Non-current Assets 2,524,302            19,016,107         -                     21,540,409        27,171,602

TOTAL ASSETS 20,623,627          28,408,890         21,589,312    70,621,829        73,073,143

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to OPEB 881,292 - - 881,292 1,029,617
Related to Pension 4,048,638 - - 4,048,638 5,081,664

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,929,930            -                          -                     4,929,930          6,111,281

Total

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County 
Source Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Supplementary Schedule of Net Position - Waste Management Authority
June 30, 2023 and 2022
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Household
Solid Mitigation Hazardous
waste Fees Waste 2023 2022

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 143,203 23,175 3,577,615 3,743,993 2,861,983
Accrued Expenses 536,167 - - 536,167 472,699
Accrued Vacation 488,208 - - 488,208 442,750
Unearned revenue 77,952 - - 77,952 164,722
Due to Other Funds 424,907 (976,771) 31,464 (520,400) 1,550,920

Total Current Liabilities 1,670,437            (953,596)             3,609,079      4,325,920          5,493,074

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Accrued Vacation 54,245 - - 54,245 49,194
Accrued Expenses - - - - 126,722
Net OPEB Liability - - - - 507,008
Net Pension Liability 2,529,081 - - 2,529,081 -

Total Long-term Liability 2,583,326            -                          -                     2,583,326          682,924

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,253,763            (953,596)             3,609,079      6,909,246          6,175,998

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Leases -                           5,995,476           -                     5,995,476          6,333,877
Related to OPEB 1,206,910 - - 1,206,910 152,372
Related to Pension 243,626 - - 243,626 625,207

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,450,536            5,995,476           -                     7,446,012          7,111,456

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 590,587 13,351,300 - 13,941,887 14,012,696
Restricted for Pension and OPEB 383,981 - - 383,981 3,088,927
Unrestricted 18,874,690 10,015,710 17,980,233 46,870,633 48,795,347

TOTAL NET POSITION 19,849,258$        23,367,010$       17,980,233$  61,196,501$      65,896,970$  

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County 
Source Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Supplementary Schedule of Net Position - Waste Management Authority
June 30, 2023 and 2022

Total
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Household
Solid Mitigation Hazardous
waste Fees Waste 2023 2022

OPERATING REVENUES
Fees 6,202,318$    397,953$       -$                   6,600,271$    6,454,812$        
Household Hazardous Fees -                     -                     6,685,017      6,685,017      6,600,553
Other 192,280         37,608           -                     229,888         154,977

Total Operating Revenues 6,394,598      435,561         6,685,017      13,515,176    13,210,342

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Benefits 10,777,069    1,007,298      59,961           11,844,328    (3,244,518)
Program Expenses 541,422         176,110         7,002,211      7,719,743      7,209,676
Legal and Accounting 95,763           19,991           2,152             117,906         125,136
Board Expenses -                     -                     -                     -                 -
Depreciation 44,322           125,352         -                     169,674         171,987

Total Operating Expenses 11,458,576    1,328,751      7,064,324      19,851,651    4,262,281

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (5,063,978)     (893,190)        (379,307)        (6,336,475)     8,948,061

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Grants 200,978         -                     -                     200,978         271,327
Interest Income 205,839         319,143         317,215         842,197         288,366
Other Income 180,736         412,095         -                     592,831         501,045

Total Nonoperating Revenues 587,553         731,238         317,215         1,636,006      1,060,738

NET INCOME (LOSS) (4,476,425)     (161,952)        (62,092)          (4,700,469)     10,008,799

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 24,325,683    23,528,962    18,042,325    65,896,970    55,888,171

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 19,849,258$  23,367,010$  17,980,233$  61,196,501$  65,896,970$      

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council

For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Supplementary Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - 
Waste Management Authority

Total
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2023 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,790,014$   3,950,723$   
Accounts Receivable - -
Interest Receivable 9,957 2,348
Due From Other Funds 33,808 4,449
Grants Receivable 611,311 416,132

TOTAL ASSETS 3,445,090   4,373,652

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 319,316 364,091
Due to Other Funds 1,341,896 1,207,441
Unearned revenue 1,306,504 2,465,551

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,967,716   4,037,083

NET POSITION
Unrestricted 477,374 336,569

TOTAL NET POSITION 477,374$   336,569$   

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source Reduction 
and Recycling Board and Energy Council
Supplementary Schedule of Net Position - Energy Council
June 30, 2023 and 2022
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Benefits 1,227,348$   1,121,583$   
Program Expenses 4,812,264 4,418,695
Legal and Accounting 9,833 4,347

Total Operating Expenses 6,049,445  5,544,625

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Grants 6,114,947 5,508,425
Other revenue 50,000 50,000
Interest Income 25,303 9,714

Total Nonoperating Revenues 6,190,250  5,568,139

NET INCOME (LOSS) 140,805      23,514

NET POSITION, BEGINNING OF YEAR 336,569      313,055

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 477,374$   336,569$   

Total

Supplementary Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Energy Council

Alameda County Waste Management Authority, Alameda County Source 
Reduction and Recycling Board and Energy Council
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ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Governmental activities

Net investment in 
capital assets $14,613,629 $14,453,559 $14,303,952 $14,240,814 $14,105,354 $14,263,940 $14,208,618 $14,073,978 $14,012,696 13,941,887
Restricted for Pension and OPEB $3,088,927 383,981

Unrestricted
  Reserve for unforeseen expenses 27,748,351 28,245,961 15,155,616 14,138,023 13,288,173 11,475,334 12,684,675 $20,831,410 15,564,537
  Encumbances $3,218,700 $2,184,936 $1,978,741 $2,518,680 $3,559,889 $4,232,961 5,520,412
  Net Position Available (Core) $10,552,823 $11,695,343 $17,748,804 $18,771,833 $17,847,501 $14,313,449 15,035,038
  Net Position Available (HHW) $4,601,800 $7,585,714 $10,292,306 $13,244,189 $15,312,248 $15,836,378 $16,297,908 $16,403,720 16,963,967
  Net Position Available Other ($24,214) $339,310 $348,342 $171,588 $511,582 $453,461 651,569
 Other unrestricted 31,502,038

Total governmental activities 
net position $46,115,667 $46,803,710 $50,135,627 $53,436,045 $55,707,155 $62,940,248 $62,982,431 $64,975,533 $73,336,624 $68,061,391

Fiscal Year Ended June 30
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ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Operating Expenses

Salary and Benefits $5,990,719 $6,479,417 $6,232,177 $7,081,369 $7,707,059
Pension Expense 
Program Expenses $14,514,836 $23,899,072 $23,596,811 $26,172,889 $22,945,914
Legal and Accounting 228,405 157,922 247,917 148,330 151,697
Board Expenses 46,993 47,437 51,735 53,850 51,450
Depreciation Expenses 162,322 160,070 159,002 161,806 154,022

Total Operating Expenses 20,943,275 30,743,918 30,287,642 33,618,244 31,010,142

Operating Revenues
Disposal and waste import mitigation Fees 16,097,294
In County Facility Fees 4,514,279 4,370,235 5,056,006 5,416,761
Measure D Municipalty Allcations 4,278,353 4,142,273 4,793,312 5,164,136
Other Tonnage Fees 4,278,353 4,142,273 4,793,311 5,164,136
San Francisco Mitigation Fees 2,366,289 1,338,995
Other Counties Mitigation Fees 279,203 302,498 382,842 564,434
Out of County Facility Fees 274,636 204,522 476,915 378,598
Benchmark Fees 950,002 966,471 940,163 927,963 5,506
Household Hazardous Waste Fees and Grants 9,230,570 7,785,913 7,716,614 7,678,014
Other Fees and Revenues 1,024,729 66,529 253,259 102,067 715,113

18,072,025 26,254,683 23,480,131 24,249,030 25,086,698

Non-operating Revenues

Energy Council 8,797,720 9,196,513 6,653,388 7,592,965
Externally Funded 404,644 320,098 4,253,164 1,191,923
Interest Income 64,706 129,321 189,177 264,958 443,430
Other Income 741,785 434,641 530,630

64,706 10,073,470 10,140,429 11,702,140 9,228,318

Total Revenues 18,136,731 36,328,153 33,620,560 35,951,170 34,315,016

Change in Net Position ($2,806,544) $5,584,235 $3,332,918 $2,332,926 $3,304,874

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
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2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$8,926,741 $10,483,956 $8,402,533 $9,078,149 $9,660,409
$1,796,759 ($6,494,526) $7,054,295

$21,524,291 $21,147,798 $17,714,598 $18,396,728 $19,552,843
306,814 253,050 302,124 142,841 188,795

51,555 48,150 60,535 555
181,542 173,903 176,235 171,987 169,674

30,990,943 32,106,857 28,452,784 21,295,734 36,626,016

5,878,000 5,531,288 5,219,013 5,136,391 5,207,544
5,570,885 5,247,806 4,946,515 4,875,709 4,937,106

5,570,885 5,247,806 4,946,516 4,875,735 4,937,084

1,096,353 571,961 384,943 349,542 397,953
387,433 471,167 388,909 968,879 994,910

7,336,109 6,712,119 6,625,485 6,600,553 6,685,017
2,707,829 538,754 255,800 204,976 279,754

28,547,494 24,320,903 22,767,181 23,011,785 23,439,368

8,397,907 8,599,604 6,380,164 5,508,425 6,114,947
669,510 131,027 89,147 271,327 194,031
790,123 969,551 497,493 364,243 1,002,523

25,197 106,697 711,901 501,045 599,914
9,882,737 9,806,879 7,678,705 6,645,040 7,911,415

38,430,231 34,127,781 30,445,886 29,656,825 31,350,783

$7,439,288 $2,020,924 $1,993,102 $8,361,091 ($5,275,233)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
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Utility, Unsecure and Less: Total Taxable Total
Fiscal Residential Commercial Industrial Agricultural Institutional Escaped Assessment Tax-Exempt Assessed Direct
Year Property Property Property Property Property Property Property (1) Value Tax Rate

2014 149,092,989$       29,348,915$         20,120,895$            1,456,520$         2,689,140$        15,633,013$         7,566,667$           210,774,805$       1.00%
2015 161,954,196 29,475,074 20,596,312 1,501,740 2,871,593 15,748,875 8,858,490 223,289,300 1.00%
2016 174,707,996 30,784,933 21,604,658 1,573,372 3,008,754 16,840,363 7,931,121 240,588,955 1.00%
2017 186,918,732 32,806,144 23,888,234 1,756,511 3,170,216 17,221,687 8,558,188 257,203,336 1.00%
2018 200,674,894 34,676,697 25,376,448 1,894,968 3,298,031 17,548,323 9,106,096 274,363,265 1.00%
2019 215,427,058 37,533,321 27,666,681 1,876,129 3,468,343 18,506,333 10,161,638 293,317,427 1.00%
2020 231,131,813 39,990,023 28,200,728 1,972,429 3,539,951 19,969,802 11,017,076 313,787,670 1.00%
2021 247,253,774 42,513,567 29,422,878 2,056,686 3,688,113 21,460,096 11,365,306 335,029,808 1.00%
2022 259,956,867 43,695,349 30,673,447 2,087,024 3,847,832 22,184,992 11,755,543 350,689,968 1.00%
2023 (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)

(1) The utility, unsecured and escaped assessment rolls are not available by property type.
(2) Data not yet published
Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports - Auditor-Controller, County of Alameda

ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
ASSESSED VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(amounts expressed in thousands)
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ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Agency-Wide Revenues
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Years
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Function/Program

Waste Management:
  Operation 

Fees 7,650,217 7,434,408 6,234,106 5,956,511 6,359,793 7,443,362 6,574,416 5,992,865 6,454,812 6,600,272
Easement Fee 1,790,470
Household Hazardous Fees 9,117,151 7,627,800 7,496,640 7,678,014 7,336,109 6,712,118 6,625,485 6,600,553 6,685,017
Benchmark Fees 950,002 966,471 940,161 927,963 5,506
Other 993,899 929,256 911,655 885,980 665,115 785,796 669,546 139,067 93,426 229,888
   Total 9,594,118 18,447,286 15,713,722 15,267,094 14,708,428 17,355,737 13,956,080 12,757,417 13,148,791 13,515,177

  Non-operation 
Grants 455,608 395,650 235,455 4,168,343 1,195,935 669,511 740,982 89,147 326,665 200,978
Interest Income 38,894 82,757 119,292 167,841 304,100 544,376 675,768 346,106 288,366 842,197
Other Income 25,197 56,697 830,974 507,257 592,831

   Total 494,502 478,407 354,747 4,336,184 1,500,035 1,239,084 1,473,447 1,266,227 1,122,288 1,636,006

Total Waste Management 10,088,620 18,925,693 16,068,469 19,603,278 16,208,463 18,594,821 15,429,527 14,023,644 14,271,079 15,151,183

Recycling Board
  Operation 

Fees 8,447,077 8,556,710 8,284,547 9,586,623 10,328,272 11,141,755 10,495,847 9,893,031 9,750,223 9,874,190
Other 30,830 11,883 16,436 763

  Non-operation 

Interest Income 24,734 32,746 50,247 94,031 136,780 232,428 273,679 135,634 66,162 135,158

 Total Recycling Board 8,502,641 8,601,339 8,351,230 9,681,417 10,465,052 11,374,183 10,769,526 10,028,665 9,816,385 10,009,348

Energy Council

  Non-operation 

Energy Council 3,655,592 8,797,721 9,151,514 6,613,389 7,588,952 8,397,906 7,858,623 6,327,825 5,509,647 6,114,947
Other Revenue 45,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000
Interest Inccome 1,078 3,400 4,346 3,086 2,550 13,319 20,103 15,754 9,714 25,303
 Total 3,656,670 8,801,121 9,200,860 6,666,475 7,641,502 8,461,225 7,928,726 6,393,579 5,569,361 6,190,250

Grand Total 22,247,931 36,328,153 33,620,559 35,951,170 34,315,017 38,430,229 34,127,779 30,445,888 29,656,825 31,350,781

Source: Alameda County Waste Management Authority Finanace Department

63
93



A Historical Disposal Trends In Alameda County (2013 - 2023)

ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Agency-Wide Tonnage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Unrestricted other than 0 0 0

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
973,780    962,755    962,439    968,789    932,706    1,080,311 1,140,060 1,107,581 1,173,799 1,116,247 1,108,113 1,111,769
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ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
PROPERTY TAX RATES

ALL OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

County Local
Fiscal County Special Special Agency 
Year General District District District School Cities Total

2013 1.000% 0.0048% 0.0016% 0.0159% 0.1289% 0.0560% 1.2072%
2014 1.000% 0.0054% 0.0015% 0.0240% 0.1346% 0.0529% 1.2184%
2015 1.000% 0.0054% 0.0022% 0.0183% 0.1393% 0.0546% 1.2198%
2016 1.000% 0.0074% 0.0018% 0.0177% 0.1310% 0.0469% 1.2048%
2017 1.000% 0.0071% 0.0019% 0.0198% 0.1279% 0.0513% 1.2080%
2018 1.000% 0.0077% 0.0020% 0.0244% 0.1406% 0.0526% 1.2273%
2019 1.000% 0.0071% 0.0051% 0.0251% 0.1407% 0.0501% 1.2281%
2020 1.000% 0.0067% 0.0056% 0.0293% 0.1437% 0.0504% 1.2357%
2021 1.000% 0.0066% 0.0055% 0.0259% 0.1382% 0.0537% 1.2299%
2022 1.000% 0.0067% 0.0056% 0.0152% 0.1528% 0.0554% 1.2357%
2023 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)

(1) Date not yet published
Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports - Auditor-Controller, County of Alameda
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ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Alameda             77,505          78,396          80,460          81,073          81,275          81,618          81,312          80,884          77,784          77,287
Albany              18,485          18,617          18,565          18,587          18,867          18,961          18,937          17,055          21,648          21,401
Berkeley            117,670        119,230        120,059        121,050        121,752        122,358        122,580        116,761        124,563        123,562
Dublin              53,462          55,965          57,153          59,281          61,666          64,132          65,716          64,695          72,932          71,750
Emeryville          10,890          11,021          11,895          12,045          12,000          12,041          12,298          12,586          12,497          12,610
Fremont             225,683        228,474        230,243        232,010        232,685        233,404        234,220        234,239        229,476        229,467
Hayward             153,551        155,753        157,790        159,623        159,603        160,197        160,311        158,089        160,591        159,800
Livermore           85,665          87,028          88,894          90,212          90,946          91,436          91,861          91,216          86,149          84,793
Newark              43,907          44,371          44,722          45,260          46,812          48,164          48,966          48,859          47,229          47,459
Oakland             414,091        419,571        425,115        428,165        429,145        430,753        433,697        435,514        424,464        419,556
Piedmont            11,160          11,291          11,398          11,442          11,434          11,468          11,453          11,296          10,977          10,793
Pleasanton          73,009          74,950          76,014          76,685          78,698          79,392          79,464          78,371          77,609          76,459
San Leandro         87,371          88,273          88,485          88,594          88,276          88,296          87,930          87,289          88,404          87,497
Union City          72,059          72,811          73,148          73,379          73,105          73,661          73,637          72,779          68,150          66,754
Balance Of County    146,221        147,777        148,658        149,305        149,042        148,902        148,452        146,958        149,506        147,006

Alameda County Total 1,590,729     1,613,528     1,632,599     1,646,711     1,655,306     1,664,783     1,670,834     1,656,591     1,651,979     1,636,194

Source:  State of California Department of Finance
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ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
Full-Time Equivalent Agency Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Administration 9 9 9 10 12 16 11 11 11 12
Administration Programs 1 1 1 1 1 1 4 3 1 2
Programs 25 26 27 25 33 30 30 30 30 30

Total 35 36 37 36 46 47 45 44 42 44

Adopted for Fiscal Year June 30
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Secured Percentage of Secured Percentage of 
Assessed Total Secured Assessed Total Secured

Taxpayer Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value

PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY $3,121,398 1 0.88 % $1,600,636 1 0.80 %
TESLA INC 2,701,510 2 0.76 315,896 10 0.16
KAISER FOUNDATION HOSPITALS 989,967 3 0.28 971,305 2 0.49
SUTTER BAY HOSPITALS 463,586 4 0.13 386,462 7 0.19
BA2 300 LAKESIDE LLC 458,238 5 0.13
UPTOWN BROADWAY LLC 427,380 6 0.12
CP VI FRANKLIN LLC 426,883 7 0.12
BMR GATEWAY BOULEVARD LLC 391,701 8 0.11
PACIFIC COMMONS OWNER LP 382,099 9 0.11
SOFXI WFO CENTER 21 OWNER L L C 370,970 10 0.10
Russell City Energy Company, LLC 668,100 3 0.34
AT&T California 424,644 4 0.21
BRE Properties Inc 413,615 5 0.21
Apple Computer Inc 441,562 6 0.21
OCC Venture LLC 362,294 8 0.18
Kaiser Foundation Health Plan Inc 361,789 9 0.18

$9,733,731 2.74 % $4,237,854 2.97 %

Total Assessed Valuation:
Fiscal Year 2022/23: $354,881,083,631

Source: Auditor-Controller, County of Alameda

ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

(amount expressed in thousands)

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2014
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DATE:  January 11, 2024 

TO:  Recycling Board 

FROM:  Timothy Burroughs, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Board Rules of Procedure for Teleconferencing 
 
 
SUMMARY 

On December 8, 2022, the Recycling Board adopted a resolution to amend its Rules of Procedure to 
remove the limit on the number of Board Members who may utilize teleconferencing for board and 
committee meetings; to not incorporate the Just Cause and Personal Emergency Provisions of AB 
2449 into the Rules of Procedure; and to require that Board Members provide the Clerk of the 
Board at least six days’ notice in advance of the affected board meeting if they wish to utilize 
teleconferencing from a noticed location. The resolution also directed that the Board evaluate 
these changes to the Rules of Procedure at a future date. The purpose of this agenda item is to 
enable the Board to evaluate the amendments to the Rules of Procedure adopted in December 
2022.  
 
DISCUSSION 

Prior to amendments approved by the Board in December 2022, the Board’s Rules of Procedure 
stated that no more than two Board members may utilize teleconferencing for a Board meeting.  
 
As was discussed when the Board approved the interim amendments to the Rules in March 2022 
and then affirmed those amendments in December 2022, it is not standard practice for regional 
legislative bodies to have rules of procedure that limit the number of board members who may 
participate remotely, consistent with the Brown Act. Providing a teleconference option for Board 
Members creates environmental as well as health benefits. The Board has also demonstrated its 
ability to efficiently and effectively carry out its work under the current Rules of Procedure. Staff 
appreciate that Board Members have made it their practice to notify the Clerk at least six days in 
advance of a given Board meeting if they wish to teleconference from a noticed location.  
 
The Board chose to not incorporate the provisions of AB 2449 into its Rules of Procedure because 
the law requires somewhat complicated criteria that must be satisfied, procedures that must be 
implemented, and limitations on the number of times a Board Member can rely on these provisions 
to attend remotely. AB 2449 also sunsets at the end of 2025. For more detail on the provisions of 
AB 2449, see the 2nd page of Attachment 1.  
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Staff is not recommending any changes to the amendments that the Board adopted in December 
2022.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board evaluate the amendments to the Rules of Procedure adopted on 
December 8, 2022.  

 

Attachment 1: December 8, 2022, Memo to the Recycling Board regarding Rules of Procedure 

Attachment 2: Minutes from the December 8, 2022, Recycling Board meeting 
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DATE: December 8, 2022  

TO: Recycling Board  

FROM: Timothy Burroughs, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Rules of Procedure for Teleconferencing at Recycling Board Meetings 

SUMMARY 

In March 2022, the Recycling Board adopted interim amendments to the Board’s Rules of Procedure 
to remove the limit on the number of Board Members who may utilize teleconferencing for Board 
and Committee meetings, consistent with the Brown Act. The Board directed that the interim 
amendments would be in place until the end of the calendar year, at which time the Board would 
reevaluate and consider next steps. The purpose of this memo is for the Board to consider retaining 
the approved amendments moving forward.  

In addition, at the same time as affirming the above-mentioned amendments, staff recommends 
that the Board also consider amendments to the Rules of Procedure to incorporate the provisions 
of Assembly Bill (AB) 2449, which was signed by the Governor in September 2022 and adds a new 
limited teleconferencing option for Board members.  

DISCUSSION 

Amendments to the Rules of Procedure to remove limits on the number of Board Members who may 
participate remotely – Prior to the interim amendments approved by the Recycling Board in March 
2022, the Board’s Rules of Procedure stated that no more than two Board Members may utilize 
teleconferencing for a Board meeting at no more than two teleconferencing locations.  

The December Recycling Board meeting is an opportunity to evaluate the Board’s interim 
amendments to remove the limit on the number of Board Members who may utilize 
teleconferencing for Board meetings. Staff recommends that the Board affirm the approved 
amendments moving forward. As was discussed by the Board in March, it is not standard practice 
for regional legislative bodies to have rules of procedure that limit the number of Board Members 
who may participate by teleconference. Further, providing a teleconference option for Board 
Members creates environmental benefits from reduced vehicle miles travelled, as well as health 

1
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benefits. The Board has also demonstrated its ability to efficiently and effectively carry out its work 
while participating remotely.  

Amendments to the Rules of Procedure to incorporate provisions of AB 2449 – The passage of AB 
2449 means that there are now three distinct options for Board Members to teleconference for 
board and committee meetings: 

1. “The Usual” option: This option is generally the teleconferencing option that has historically
been available; it requires the Board member to post a hard copy of the agenda at their
remote location and allow the public to physically attend the meeting at the location where
the Board member is located (e.g., Board Member’s home, office, or hotel room). This
option does not have a sunset. (See Government Code section 54953(b).)

2. “The Covid Emergency (AB 361)” option: This is the teleconferencing option the legislature
adopted in September 2021 (AB 361) in response to COVID-19; it requires the Board to
make certain monthly findings regarding the state of emergency and its impact on the
ability to safely meet, and/or the continued imposition or recommendation of measures to
promote social distancing. As law, AB 361 sunsets at the end of 2023 but will actually
become unavailable on February 28, 2023, because the Governor has announced he will
rescind the COVID emergency declaration as of that date. The existence of a state of
emergency is one of the findings the Board is required to make in order to participate
remotely using the streamlined teleconferencing rules created by AB 361. (See Government
Code section 54953(e).)

3. “The Just Cause or Personal Emergency” option created by AB 2449: This new option
provides two distinct grounds for a Board or Committee Member to attend remotely: (i) for
Just Cause, or (ii) for a Personal Emergency. The legislation provides somewhat complicated
criteria that must be satisfied, procedures that must be implemented, and limitations on the
number of times a Board Member can rely on these bases to attend remotely. This option is
scheduled to sunset at the end of 2025. (See Government Code section 54953(f)1.) A
detailed review of the provisions of AB 2449 is included below.

Using the Just Cause and Personal Emergency options included in AB 2449 

As long as the Recycling Board continues to make findings under the COVID Emergency options (AB 
361), there is no need for any Board Member to use the Just Cause/Personal Emergency option. The 
Just Cause/Personal Emergency option is only relevant once the COVID Emergency option (AB 361) 
is not available.   

For a Board member to rely on either the Just Cause or Personal Emergency provisions to remotely 
attend a Board meeting the following requirements must be met: 

1. At least a quorum of the Board must be present at a singular physical location clearly
identified on the agenda. If there is less than a quorum at the specified location, then no

1 This is renumbered to Section 54953(e) for 2024 and 2025 after AB 361 sunsets. 

2 104



Board Member may participate using either the Just Cause or Personal Emergency 
provisions. If one or more Board Members attending at the specified physical location leave 
the meeting such that there is less than a quorum at that location, then no Board Members 
using the Just Cause or Personal Emergency provisions may continue to participate in the 
meeting. The meeting may continue without those Board Members as long as there is a 
quorum of Board Members participating in person or from remote locations using “The 
Usual” option. 

2. The Agency must notice the meeting and meet certain minimum technological
requirements similar to those currently in place. Specifically, the Recycling Board must
provide (1) for public observation of the meeting via either a two-way audiovisual platform,
or a two-way telephonic service accompanied by live webcasting; (2) opportunities for the
public to comment via a call-in option, an internet-based option, and an in-person location;
(3) information on how to observe and comment in all notices of the meeting; and (4)
procedural protections to ensure that the Board takes no action during a disruption that
prevents the public from observing or commenting on the meeting.

3. The Board Member must participate via both audio and visual technology (e.g., Zoom with
camera turned on). If the Board member’s audio or visual connection is lost during the
meeting, the Board Member may not participate until the problem is resolved. Note that
this requirement differs from “the Usual” option which allows participation by audio only.

4. The Board Member must disclose at the meeting before action is taken whether there are
any adults in the room with the Board member and must disclose the general nature of the
member’s relationship with any such individuals.

5. The Board Member must not have exceeded the limits on use of the Just Cause and
Personal Emergency provisions during the calendar year. No member may participate
remotely using those provisions more than three consecutive months or 20 percent of the
regular Board meetings within a calendar year. The Recycling Board meets 12 times per
year; 20 percent of 12 is 2.4. This means that Board Members may rely on one or both of
the Just Cause and Personal Emergency provisions no more than a total of two times per
year for Board meetings.

6. The Board Member must inform the Board of their need to participate remotely for Just
Cause or a Personal Emergency “at the earliest opportunity possible.” The legislation
acknowledges that this may be as late as the start of the meeting in question.

If the requirements above are satisfied, then a Board Member may rely on either the Just Cause or 
Personal Emergency provisions if the following additional requirements are satisfied: 

Just Cause – A Board Member may rely on this provision based on a need related to: (a) 
caregiving for certain family members, (b) a contagious illness, (c) a physical or mental 
disability, and (d) travelling while on official business for a public agency. The Board 
Member is required to provide a general description of the circumstances relating to their 
need to appear remotely for just cause.   
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Personal Emergency – This provision requires the Board to approve remote participation 
and applies only to medical emergencies for the Board Member or their family. The Board 
member must request approval of remote participation and provide a general description of 
the circumstances. This description generally need not exceed 20 words and does not 
require the member to disclose any medical diagnosis or disability, or any personal medical 
information that is already exempt under existing law. There must be a separate request for 
each meeting at which the member wishes to participate remotely. The Board may add such 
requests to the agenda as an urgency item. The law does not provide any guidance on 
standards to be used by the Board in considering requests for remote participation.   

If the Board chooses to incorporate the provisions of AB 2449 into its Rules of Procedure, staff 
recommends that the Board add a standing agenda item to receive Just Cause reports and Personal 
Emergency Requests. In the event of such a report the Clerk can verify that the baseline procedural 
requirements above have been satisfied. Note, however, that if a quorum of the Board is not 
attending from a single physical location, neither option will be available, and the Personal 
Emergency option will be available only at the discretion of the full Board. For these reasons, once 
AB 361 is no longer in effect, Board Members unable to attend in person or at a noticed remote 
location under “The Usual” procedures should consider sending their interim appointee.  

The following table summarizes the discussion above. 
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Teleconferencing Options  

Usual Covid Emergency 
Just Cause or 

Personal 
Emergency 

Public must be allowed to 
attend in person at Board 
Member’s remote location? 

Yes No No 

Limit on # of Board 
Members that can use this 
option at the same time? 

No (as long as the 
Board affirms its 
interim 
amendments 
removing this limit 
in the Rules of 
Procedure) 

No Yes, at least a 
quorum must be 
present at “a 
singular physical 
location clearly 
identified on the 
agenda” 

Limit on # of times a Board 
Member can use the 
option? 

No No Yes, a maximum of 
two times per 
calendar year 

Board Member must use 
both audio + visual 
technology? 

No, audio only is 
acceptable 

No, audio only is 
acceptable 

Yes 

Quorum of Board Members 
need to attend from 
locations in the jurisdiction? 

Yes, although can 
be remote 
locations within the 
Alameda County 

No Yes (see note above 
regarding location 
of quorum) 

Required to provide a 
physical meeting location 
for public? 

Yes, at standard 
location where 
regular meeting 
held in person + at 
Board member’s 
remote location 

No Yes 

5 107



Required to provide call-in 
or internet-based broadcast 
for public? 

No Yes, although 
minimum 
standards not 
described 

Yes, either a two-
way audiovisual 
platform or a two-
way telephonic 
service + live 
stream; public must 
be able to provide 
comment via a call-
in option, an 
internet-based 
option, and an in-
person location 

Action must stop if 
broadcast for public 
disrupted? 

No, no express 
requirement 
although City could 
choose to pause 
until technology 
issue resolved and 
may be prudent to 
do so 

Yes Yes 

Planned to sunset? No Yes, law sunsets at 
end of 2023 and is 
no longer in effect 
as of February 28, 
2023 

Yes, sunsets at end 
of 2025 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Recycling Board adopt Resolution 2022-15 to remove the limit on the 
number of Board Members who may utilize teleconferencing for Board and Committee meetings 
and to incorporate the Just Cause and Personal Emergency provisions of AB 2449.  
 
Attachment A: #RB Resolution 2022-15 
Attachment B: March 10, 2022, Recycling Board Memo and Resolution approving interim 
amendments to the Rules of Procedure to remove the limit on the number of Board Members who 
may utilize teleconferencing 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 

ALAMEDA COUNTY SOURCE REDUCTION AND RECYCLING BOARD 
 

RESOLUTION #RB 2022-15 
 

MOVED:   
SECONDED:  

 
AT THE MEETING HELD December 8, 2022 

 
AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES OF PROCEDURE REGARDING TELECONFERENCING   

  
WHEREAS, the Recycling Board Rules of Procedure allow no more than two Recycling Board 
members to utilize teleconferencing at a Board meeting at no more than two teleconferencing 
locations, and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 10, 2022, the Recycling Board adopted interim amendments to the Board’s 
Rules of Procedure to remove the limit on the number of Board members who may utilize 
teleconferencing for Board meetings and directed that the interim amendments remain in place 
until the end of calendar year 2022, at which time the Board would reevaluate and consider next 
steps, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is not standard practice for regional legislative bodies to have rules of procedure that 
limit the number of Board members who may participate by teleconference, the Board has 
demonstrated that it can efficiently and effectively carry out its work while participating remotely, 
and having the option to participate remotely creates both environmental and health benefits, and 
 
WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 2449 (Rubio) was signed by the Governor on September 13, 2022 and 
creates a new limited option for Board members to teleconference for board and committee 
meetings, and 
 
WHEREAS, amendments to the Recycling Board Rules of Procedure are required in order to 
incorporate the provisions of AB 2449, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act sets strict rules for teleconferencing, designed to enable members of the 
public to access and participate in meetings of legislative bodies at teleconference locations, 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Section 3-8 of the Alameda County Source Reduction and 
Recycling Board Rules of Procedure is amended to read as follows: 
 
Teleconferencing. Recycling Board members who are unable to attend a meeting in person may 
participate in meetings by teleconference in accordance with this section, but are encouraged to 
have interim appointees attend in their place. Interims are appointed by the Alameda County 
Waste Management Authority (WMA) Board for WMA representatives, and by the Alameda County 
Board of Supervisors for county resident representatives. No more than two Recycling Board 
members may utilize teleconferencing at a Committee/Recycling Board meeting at no more than 
two teleconferencing locations. A Board member wishing to utilize teleconferencing for a meeting 
must notify the Executive Director (or designee) prior to the release of the agenda for that meeting, 
of the teleconference location. The teleconference location must be accessible to the public. The 
Executive Director will identify the teleconference location in the agenda of the meeting and ensure 
posting of the agenda at the teleconference location. Votes at a Committee/ Recycling Board 7 109



meeting where teleconferencing is utilized will be taken by roll call. If more than two members 
request teleconferencing, the two selected shall be chosen on the basis of the order of request, and 
in the case of ties, by seniority on the Recycling Board. Members shall be compensated for 
attendance via teleconferencing on the same basis they would be if they were physically present. 
 
A Board member choosing to attend a meeting by teleconference wishing to utilize 
teleconferencing for a meeting must notify the Executive Director (or designee) prior to the release 
of the agenda for that meeting. may do so in accordance with the Brown Act as follows: 
 
1.  Noticed Location. A Recycling Board member wishing to utilize teleconferencing from a 

noticed location shall notify the Clerk of the Board prior to the release of the agenda for the 
affected Board meeting of the teleconference location that is accessible to the public. 
Agendas are typically released seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. The Clerk of the 
Board will identify the teleconference location in the agenda of the meeting and ensure 
posting of the agenda at the teleconference location.  

 
2. Just Cause or Personal Emergency.  A Recycling Board member wishing to utilize 

teleconferencing under the Brown Act’s just cause or personal emergency procedures shall 
notify the Clerk of the Board at the earliest opportunity possible, including at the start of a 
regular meeting, of their need to participate remotely together with a general description of 
the circumstances relating to their need to appear remotely.  If the Board member is 
requesting authorization to use the personal emergency procedures the Board shall 
consider, at the outset of the meeting, whether to approve the request.  If a quorum of the 
Board is not participating in person from the StopWaste offices (or other specific physical 
location clearly identified on the agenda) then no Board member may participate using the 
just cause or personal emergency procedures.  A Board member may teleconference 
pursuant to this provision no more than two times per year.  For the purposes of this 
subsection 2: 

 
-  The member shall publicly disclose at the meeting before any action is taken 
whether any other individuals 18 years of age or older are present in the room at 
the remote location with the member, and the general nature of the member’s 
relationship with any such individuals. 
 
-  The member shall participate through both audio and visual technology. 
 
- “Emergency circumstances” means a physical or family medical emergency that 
prevents a member from attending in person. 
 
- “Just cause” means any of the following: (1) A childcare or caregiving need of a 
child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, sibling, spouse, or domestic partner that 
requires them to participate remotely; (2) A contagious illness that prevents a 
member from attending in person; (3) A need related to a physical or mental 
disability; (4) Travel while on official business of the Recycling Board or another 
state or local agency. 

 
Recycling Board members who are unable to attend a meeting in person or at a noticed remote 
location are encouraged to have interim appointees attend in their place. Interims are appointed by 
the Alameda County Waste Management Authority (WMA) Board for WMA representatives, and by 
the Alameda County Board of Supervisors for county resident representatives. 
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Votes at a Committee/Recycling Board meeting where teleconferencing is utilized will be taken by 
roll call and all other applicable requirements of the Brown Act will be followed. If more than two 
members request teleconferencing, the two selected shall be chosen on the basis of the order of 
request, and in the case of ties, by seniority on the Recycling Board.  Members shall be 
compensated for attendance via teleconferencing on the same basis they would be if they were 
physically present. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board recommends that the Alameda County Waste 
Management Authority (ACWMA) Board make conforming amendments to its Rules of Procedure to 
the extent that they apply to the ACWMA Planning Committee. 
 
Effective date and Expiration Date. The Resolution shall take effect on March 1, 2023 and expire on 
December 31, 2025. 
 
 
 
Passed and adopted this 8th day of December 2022 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:    
ABSENT:   
ABSTAINED:   
        
 
 
 
       
  ________________________ 
         Arliss Dunn, Clerk of the Board 
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DATE:  March 10, 2022  

TO:  Recycling Board 

FROM:  Timothy Burroughs, Executive Director 
 
SUBJECT: Rules of Procedure for Teleconferencing at Recycling Board Meetings 
 
 
SUMMARY 

The Recycling Board Rules of Procedure, which are approved and can be revised by a majority of the 
total authorized vote of the Board, state that no more than two Board members may utilize 
teleconferencing for a Recycling Board meeting at no more than two teleconferencing locations. 
Further, the Brown Act sets strict rules for teleconferencing, designed to enable members of the 
public to access and participate in Board meetings at each teleconference location. The purpose of 
this memo is for the Recycling Board to consider interim amendments to the Rules of Procedure, 
consistent with the Brown Act, to remove the limit on the number of Board members who may 
utilize teleconferencing for Board meetings and to advise staff on the preferred start time for 
meetings held in each of the five supervisorial districts. The interim amendments would be in place 
until the end of calendar year 2022, at which time the Board would revisit and consider next steps.  

 
DISCUSSION 

In order to promote public health and safety, the Recycling Board has met exclusively by 
teleconference since the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic in March 2020. Initially, it was an 
Executive Order issued by the Governor that streamlined legislative body teleconferencing by 
suspending certain Brown Act rules, including the requirements that all teleconference locations be 
made available for the public, that each teleconference location be identified on the agenda, and 
that the agenda be posted at each teleconference location. Then, on September 16, 2021, the 
Governor signed AB 361 into law, which amends the Brown Act to allow local legislative bodies to 
continue to meet by teleconference as they did under the Executive Order, subject to various 
procedural safeguards that have consistently been a part of the Board’s practice. The “streamlined” 
teleconferencing pursuant to AB 361 is allowed only when the Governor has declared a state of 
emergency and the legislative body confirms every 30 days that state or local health officials have 
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing. At such time as the streamlined 
procedures are no longer in place, the Board’s standard Rules of Procedure will take effect. If the 
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Board makes interim amendments to the Rules of Procedure regarding teleconferencing, then 
those changes would become effective at that time instead.  

The main amendment that staff is recommending that the Board consider is to remove the limit on 
the number of Board members who may utilize teleconferencing for Board meetings. The current 
Rules of Procedure also “encourage” Board members who are unable to attend a meeting in 
person, but are able to participate by teleconference, to have an interim appointee attend in their 
place (see Attachment 1, Section 3-8). Staff recommends that this aspect of the current Rules of 
Procedure – namely, encouraging Board members to appoint an interim Board member rather than 
participate via teleconference – no longer apply. Finally, staff recommends that the Board make 
these amendments on an interim basis, until the end of calendar year 2022, at which time the 
Board would reevaluate the interim rules and decide on next steps.  

Having corresponded with several other public agencies that operate in Alameda County and the 
Bay Area, staff has found that it is not standard practice for regional legislative bodies to have rules 
of procedure that limit the number of board members who may participate by teleconference. 
Public agencies throughout the region are in the process of setting up “hybrid” meeting procedures, 
meaning that members of the legislative body, agency staff, and members of the public may 
participate in Board meetings either in person or via teleconference.  

If the Board chooses to adopt interim amendments to the rules of procedure, then staff will provide 
specific instructions for Board members to ensure that Brown Act rules are followed. Specifically, 
the Brown Act requires the following once the streamlined procedures of AB 361 are no longer in 
effect: 

• At least a quorum of the legislative body must participate from locations within the local 
agency’s jurisdiction (i.e., Alameda County); 

• Each teleconference location must be specifically identified in the notice and agenda of the 
meeting, including a full address and room number, as may be applicable; 

• Agendas must be posted at each teleconference location, even if a hotel room or a 
residence;  

• Each teleconference location, including a hotel room or residence, must be accessible to the 
public and have technology, such as a speakerphone, to enable the public to participate; 

• The agenda must provide the opportunity for the public to address the legislative body 
directly at each teleconference location; and  

• All votes must be by roll call. 

Importantly, once a teleconference location is noticed to the public, Board members must ensure 
that someone is at the location at the time of the meeting to provide public access to the space and 
to provide the public the ability to make comments. Also, Board members must provide the Clerk of 
the Board with their meeting location details at least one week prior to the Board meeting to 
ensure that the Agency meets required noticing deadlines.   

In addition, per the Alameda County Waste Reduction and Recycling Initiative Charter Amendment 
(Measure D) that created the Recycling Board, the Board is required to continue to hold at least one 

11 113



regularly scheduled evening meeting per year in each supervisorial district in a location accessible 
by public transit and that ensures full access to all Recycling Board meetings by the physically 
disabled. Agency staff will coordinate with StopWaste member agencies in each supervisorial 
district to identify appropriate locations that are equipped for teleconferencing and adhere to 
Measure D requirements.  

The Board’s practice, although it is not in the Rules of Procedure, is to start the evening meetings 
held in each of the five supervisorial districts at 7:00 pm. In other words, the Board’s practice is to 
meet five times per year at 7:00 pm, while the other meetings begin at 4pm. Staff would like Board 
direction on if a 6:00 pm start time would be preferable.   

Finally, staff encourages Board members to attend the last meeting of the calendar year in person 
to review 2022 accomplishments and prepare for the new year.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt Resolution #RB 2022-04 to approve interim amendments to the Rules of Procedure to 
remove the limit on the number of Board members who may teleconference for Board meetings, 
and to start each of the five meetings held in the five supervisorial districts at 6:00 pm. The interim 
amendments to the Rules of Procedure would be in effect until the end of calendar year 2022, at 
which time the Board would reevaluate and consider next steps.  

Attachment 1: Current Alameda County Source Reduction Recycling Board Rules of Procedure 
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ALAMEDA COUNTY SOURCE REDUCTION AND RECYCLING BOARD 
 

RESOLUTION # RB 2022-04 
 

MOVED:   
SECONDED:  

 
AT THE MEETING HELD MARCH 10, 2022 

 
INTERIM AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES OF PROCEDURE REGARDING TELECONFERENCING  AND 

PERMANENT REVISION TO START TIME FOR EVENING MEETINGS 
  

WHEREAS, the Recycling Board Rules of Procedure allow no more than two Recycling Board members to 
utilize teleconferencing at a Recycling Board meeting at no more than two teleconferencing locations, and 
 
WHEREAS, these limitations were suspended during the COVID-19 public health emergency to allow all 
Board members to participate via teleconference to protect public health and safety and will take effect at 
such time as the Board resumes in person meetings, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act sets strict rules for teleconferencing, designed to enable members of the public 
to access and participate in board meetings at teleconference locations, and  
 
WHEREAS, having corresponded with several other public agencies that operate in Alameda County and 
the Bay Area, staff has found that it is not standard practice for regional legislative bodies to have rules of 
procedure that limit the number of board members who may participate by teleconference, and 
 
WHEREAS, staff is recommending that the Recyling Board consider removing the limit on the number of 
Board members who may utilize teleconferencing for Board meetings for an interim period,until the end of 
calendar year 2022, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Alameda County Waste Reduction and Recycling Initiative Charter Amendment (Measure D) 
requires the Recycling Board to hold at least one regularly scheduled evening meeting per year in each 
supervisorial district, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board’s practice is to start the meetings held in each of the five supervisorial districts at 7:00 
pm, and that staff is proposing a start time of 6:00 pm. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board 
consider and approve removing the limit on the number of Board members who may utilize 
teleconferencing for Board meetings, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that removing the limit on the number of Board members who may utilize 
teleconferencing for Board meetings is approved on an interim basis by this resolution, through the end of 
calendar year 2022, at which time the Board will consider and provide direction on next steps, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Section 3-8 of the Alameda County Source Reduction and Recycling Board 
Rules of Procedure is amended on an interim basis until December 31, 2022, to read as follows: 

Section 3-8 Teleconferencing. Recycling Board members unable to attend a meeting in person 
may participate in meetings by teleconference in accordance with this section. but are 
encouraged to have interim appointees attend in their place. Interims are appointed by the 
Alameda County Waste Management Authority (WMA) Board for WMA representatives, and by 13 115



the Alameda County Board of Supervisors for county resident representatives. No more than two 
Recycling Board members may utilize teleconferencing at a Committee/Recycling Board meeting 
at no more than two teleconferencing locations. A Board member wishing to utilize 
teleconferencing for a meeting must notify the Executive Director (or designee) prior to the 
release of the agenda for that meeting, of the teleconference location. The teleconference 
location must be accessible to the public. The Executive Director will identify the teleconference 
location in the agenda of the meeting and ensure posting of the agenda at the teleconference 
location. Votes at a Committee/Recycling Board meeting where teleconferencing is utilized will 
be taken by roll call. If more than two members request teleconferencing, the two selected shall 
be chosen on the basis of the order of request, and in the case of ties, by seniority on the Recycling 
Board. Members shall be compensated for attendance via teleconferencing on the same basis 
they would be if they were physically present. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOVLED, that the Board directs that the Board meetings held in each supervisorial district 
shall begin at 6:00 pm moving forward, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board recommends that the Alameda County Waste Management 
Authority (ACWMA) Board make conforming amendments to its Rules of Procedue to the extent that they 
apply to the ACWMA Planning Committee. 
 
Effective Date and Expiration Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption, and 
expire on December 31, 2022. 
 
 
Passed and adopted this 10th day of March 2022 by the following vote:: 
 
AYES: 
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAINED:  
        
 
 
         ________________________ 
         Arliss Dunn, Clerk of the Board 
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Section 1-1 Name of Board. The name of the Board is the Alameda County Source Reduction and 
Recycling Board, hereinafter referenced as the "Recycling Board". 

Section 1-2 Authority for Rules. These rules apply to the Recycling Board (including Committees of 
the Recycling Board), and are adopted pursuant to the Initiative Charter Amendment 
known as County of Alameda Charter Section 64, hereinafter "Initiative", which became 
effective December 20, 1990, and is hereby incorporated by this reference. 

Section 1-3 Purpose of Rules. The purpose of these rules is to provide for the orderly conduct of 
meetings of the Recycling Board. 

Article 2 
Organization of Board 

Section 2-1 Composition of Recycling Board. The Recycling Board is composed of eleven (11) 
members appointed pursuant to the Initiative creating the Recycling Board. 

Section 2-2 Officers. The Officers of the Recycling Board shall be President, First Vice-President and 
Second Vice-President, who shall serve until the elections of their successor in 
accordance with Section 2-4. 

Section 2-3 Committees. The Recycling Board may appoint such committees from time to time as may 
be appropriate to administer the powers and programs of the Recycling Board. A majority 
of Recycling Board appointed committee members shall constitute a quorum of the 
committee. A majority vote of the committee members in attendance shall be required 
for the transaction of business, however, the committee is not empowered to take final 
action on behalf of the Recycling Board. All other rules followed by the Recycling Board 
apply to committee meetings unless otherwise determined by the committee. 
Committee Chairs, or the procedure for selection of a committee Chair, shall be specified 
by the Recycling Board when the committee is appointed. 

In addition to the aforementioned, any committee that constitutes a quorum of the 
Recycling Board (see Section 3-5) shall be noticed as both a meeting of the committee 
and a meeting of the Recycling Board. 

The Executive Director or designee shall monitor the composition of all Committees on 
which one or more Recycling Board members sit and notice the meetings as appropriate 
and required in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code 
Section 54950 et.seq), requiring open and public meetings for the legislative body of a 
local agency. 

Section 2-4 Election of Officers. The Officers shall be elected at the regular meeting of the Recycling 
Board in the month of December of each year or such other time as the Board may 
decide when an officer departs the Recycling Board. They shall be elected by a majority of 

ATTACHMENT 1

ALAMEDA COUNTY SOURCE REDUCTION AND RECYCLING BOARD 
RULES OF PROCEDURE 

Revised July 12, 2018 

Article 1 
General Provisions 
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those present and voting. An abstention to vote by any member shall be construed as 
that member not voting. No member may serve more than one term in the same 
leadership position on the Recycling Board within a two-year time frame. This does not 
limit a person who has served in one office for a year serving in a different office the 
following year (e.g., the First Vice President in one year serving as the President the next 
year). 

 
Section 2-5 Term of Office. Each term of office shall be no more than one (1) year duration, 

commencing January 1 or such other time as the Board may require to fill vacancies, and 
expiring December 31 of the same calendar year. 

 
Section 2-6 Executive Director. The Executive Director of the Recycling Board shall be the Executive 

Director of the Alameda County Waste Management Authority Board. 
 

Section 2-7  Duties of President. The President shall serve as Chair and preside at all meetings of the 
Recycling Board, and shall conduct the business of the Recycling Board in the manner 
prescribed by these Rules. The President shall preserve order and decorum using the 
Rules of Conduct of Meetings listed in Article 4 and the discussion ground rules listed in 
Article 4, and shall decide all questions of order subject to the action of a majority of the 
Recycling Board. 

 
Section 2-8 Duties of the First and Second Vice-President. In the absence or inability of the 

President to act, the Vice-Presidents shall perform the duties of the President in order of 
their succession. 

 
Section 2-9 Duties of the Executive Director. The Executive Director shall perform the following duties: 

a) Attend each meeting of the Recycling Board. 
b) Prepare an agenda for each meeting. 
c) Appoint a Clerk of the Board to: 

• Notify all Recycling Board members of the time and place of each meeting; 
• Maintain all records of the Recycling Board; 
• Maintain a record of the proceedings of Recycling Board and committee meetings; 

d) Perform other duties directed by law or the Recycling Board. These duties may be 
delegated as determined necessary by the Executive Director. 

 
 

Article 3 
Meetings of Recycling Board 

 
Section 3-1    Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Recycling Board will be set by a majority vote 

of those present and voting. An abstention to vote by any member shall be construed as 
that member not voting. 

 
Section 3-2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Recycling Board may be called by order of the 

President of the Recycling Board or by a majority of the members at a regularly 
scheduled meeting. The order calling the special meeting shall specify the time of the 
meeting and the business to be transacted at such meeting. 

 
Section 3-3 Adjourned Meetings. Any regular meeting of the Recycling Board may be adjourned to 

any date prior to the date established for the next regular meeting. Any adjourned 
regular meeting is part of the regular meeting. Any special meeting may also be 
adjourned, and any adjourned special meeting is part of the special meeting. 16 118



Section 3-4 Effect of Holiday. If any meeting day or adjourned meeting day falls on a holiday, the 
meeting of the Recycling Board shall be rescheduled by the Recycling Board. 

 
Section 3-5 Quorum. A majority of the members of the Recycling Board shall constitute a quorum for 

the transaction of business, except that less than a quorum may adjourn from time to 
time pursuant to Section 3-6 of these Rules. 

 
Section 3-6 Absence of Quorum. In the absence of a quorum, the members present shall adjourn the 

meeting to a stated time and place, and the absent members shall be notified. If all 
members are absent, the Executive Director or a representative shall adjourn the 
meeting to a stated time and place and notify all members pursuant to Section 3-7 of 
these Rules. 

 
Section 3-7 Notice of Meetings. All meetings of the Recycling Board shall be held subject to the 

provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (California Government Code section 54950 et seq.) 
requiring open and public meetings for the legislative body of a local agency. 
Agendas will typically be released five (5) days in advance of regular meetings. 

 
Section 3 -8  Teleconferencing. Recycling Board members unable to attend a meeting in person may 

participate in meetings by teleconference in accordance with this section, but are 
encouraged to have interim appointees attend in their place. Interims are appointed by 
the Alameda County Waste Management Authority (WMA) Board for WMA 
representatives, and by the Alameda County Board of Supervisors for county resident 
representatives. No more than two Recycling Board members may utilize 
teleconferencing at a Committee/Recycling Board meeting at no more than two 
teleconferencing locations. A Board member wishing to utilize teleconferencing for a 
meeting must notify the Executive Director (or designee) prior to the release of the 
agenda for that meeting, of the teleconference location. The teleconference location 
must be accessible to the public. The Executive Director will identify the teleconference 
location in the agenda of the meeting and ensure posting of the agenda at the 
teleconference location. Votes at a Committee/ Recycling Board meeting where 
teleconferencing is utilized will be taken by roll call. If more than two members request 
teleconferencing, the two selected shall be chosen on the basis of the order of request, 
and in the case of ties, by seniority on the Recycling Board. Members shall be 
compensated for attendance via teleconferencing on the same basis they would be if 
they were physically present. 

 
Section 3-9 Compensation. Recycling Board members and interim appointments are compensated in 

accordance with compensation policies approved by the Recycling Board. Recycling Board 
members must attend a Recycling Board meeting to be compensated for that meeting. 

 
 

Article 4 
Conduct of Meetings 

 
Section 4-1 Order of Business. The Business of each meeting of the Recycling Board shall be 

transacted as far as is practicable in the following order: 
(a) Call to order 
(b) Roll call of attendance 
(c) Announcements by President 
(d) Open public comment 
(e) Approval of minutes of prior meetings (may be included in the consent calendar) 
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(f) Consent calendar 
(g) Regular calendar 
(h) Member Comments and communications from the Executive Director; and 
(i) Adjournment 

 
The above order of business may be suspended or changed at any time upon order of the 
Chair. The consent calendar may contain those matters the nature of which have been 
determined by the Executive Director to be routine, and items that have been 
recommended by a Committee for Recycling Board approval, and will be approved by a 
single action. Any item shall be removed from the consent calendar and placed for 
discussion on the regular calendar at the request of any member. Recycling Board 
members who were not in attendance at a meeting but have read the minutes of the 
meeting may vote in connection with approval of those minutes. The regular calendar 
shall contain all other matters and business. 

 
Open public comment from the floor is provided for any member of the public wishing to 
speak on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Recycling Board, but not listed on the 
agenda. Each speaker is limited to three minutes unless a shorter period of time is set by 
the Chair. 

 
Section 4-2 Right of Floor. Any member desiring to speak shall first be recognized by the Chair and 

shall, with the exception of open public comment period, confine any remarks to the 
subject under consideration. 

 
Section 4-3 Ground Rules for Recycling Board and Committee Discussions: 

a) Speak briefly and to the point. 
b) Focus on solutions rather than positions. If disagreeing, offer an alternative 

rather than merely stating disagreement. 
c) Seek input from those who have not spoken before anyone speaks a second 

time on a given agenda item. 
d) Seek group consensus and use voting only when further discussion seems 

unlikely to change the outcome, or circumstances require an immediate 
decision. 

e) Consensus on any item shall be stated for the written record by the meeting 
Chair. All motions shall be stated for the written record prior to voting. 

f) Identify the next step at the end of each agenda item. 
g) The meeting Chair shall prevent personal, verbal attacks on Recycling Board 

members, staff, or citizens, but shall not prevent criticisms of the policies, 
procedures, programs or services of the Recycling Board, or the acts or 
omissions of the Recycling Board or members of the Recycling Board. 

h) The meeting Chair, but no other member, may interrupt a speaker to enforce 
these rules. 

i) Serious complaints from one Recycling Board member about the behavior of 
another Recycling Board member shall be first brought to the attention of the 
Chair. 

 
 

Section 4-4 Procedures Regarding Public Hearings and Action Items 
(a) Introduction 

1) Chair announces subject of the public hearings and declares the public hearing 
open. 

2) Chair may set time limit for each speaker and may limit number of appearances 
per speaker. 
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(b) Staff and Written Material Presentation 
1.) Staff summary report and other written material included in the agenda 

packet is received and filed. Written comments (e.g. protest, etc.) are noted 
for the record. 

2.) Written material not in the agenda packet, if any, is received and filed. 
3.) Oral staff report, if any, is presented by staff member. 
4.) Staff responds to Recycling Board member questions. 

 
(c) Public Comment 

1.) The purpose of this portion of the public hearing is to provide an opportunity 
to concerned members in the audience who wish to testify in support of or 
opposition to the matter being heard. 

2.) The Chair shall instruct members of the audience: 
(a) to speak from the podium; 
(b) to give their name and address before speaking; 
(c) that repetition should be avoided. 

3.) Question by speakers will be noted and addressed prior to Recycling Board 
deliberation. 

 
(d) Recycling Board Deliberation 

1.) After the Chair has determined that no other member of the audience 
wishes to speak, the matter is returned to the Recycling Board for 
deliberation. 

2.) The Chair may ask questions of speakers for clarification. 
3.) Staff and/or Recycling Board answers prior speakers’ questions. 
4.) The Recycling Board makes a motion and debates. 

 
(e) Recycling Board Action 

1.) Recycling Board may, at this time, continue the open public hearing. 
(a) This should be done if any additional information is requested (e.g. a 

staff report). 
(b) Continuing a public hearing to a specific date does not require 

additional notice. 
2.) The Recycling Board may: 

(a) close the public hearings and vote on the item; 
(b) offer amendments or substitute motions allowing additional public 

comment; or 
(c) close the public hearing and continue the matter to a later date for a 

decision. (No additional reports or testimony may be received after the 
hearing has been closed). 

 
 
 
 

Section 4-5 Precedence of Motions 
 

When a motion is pending before the Recycling Board, no further motion shall be 
entertained except: 

 
(a) Motion to Amend – A motion to amend is debatable only as it relates to the 
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An amendment which modifies the motion is in order; however, a substitute 
motion is in order if the intent is changed. A substitute motion on the same subject 
shall be acceptable, and voted on before a vote on the amendment. Amendments 
are voted on first; the main motion vote is last. A motion may be amended more 
than once with each amendment being voted on separately. There shall only be 
one amending motion on the floor at any one time. 

 
(b) Motion to Postpone – A motion to postpone to a date uncertain is debatable. 

If such a motion is adopted, the principal question is lost. A motion to postpone to 
a definite time is subject to debate and amendment only as it relates to propriety 
of the postponement and time set. 

 
(c) Motion to Table – A motion to table is not debatable and not subject to 

amendment. 
A motion to table is only in order when another item later on the agenda is time- 
sensitive. The tabled item is taken up for discussion upon completion of the time- 
sensitive item. 

 
Section 4-6 Motion to Reconsider 

 
A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Recycling Board must be made at the 
same meeting where the item was first voted upon, in accordance with the following: 

 
(1) The motion must be made by a member who voted on the prevailing side, when 

the item was first voted upon; and 
 

(2) The motion is debatable and has precedence over a pending motion. 
 

Section 4-7 Comments from the Public 
 

Recycling Board members may ask questions but the Recycling Board shall not discuss or 
act in connection with such citizen comment, if the subject is not on the agenda for 
action. A Recycling Board member may, however, refer a subject to staff or other 
resources for factual information or for action, if appropriate. In addition, members of 
the public may comment on any item if recognized for that purpose by the meeting Chair. 
The Chair has full discretion over the time allowed for public input. 

 
Section 4-8 Parliamentary Rules. The rules laid down by Rosenberg’s Rules of Order are hereby 

adopted for this Recycling Board in all cases not otherwise provided for in these rules. 
 

Section 4-9 Vote Required. A majority of the total authorized vote of the Recycling Board shall be 
required for the adoption of the following: 

 
(a) Adopt the annual work program and budget 

 
(b) Adopt policies, rules of procedure, etc. for operations of the Recycling Board and staff 

 
A majority vote of those present and voting shall be required for any other action. An 
abstention to vote by any member shall be construed as that member not voting on a 
particular matter. 

 
Section 4-10 Interim Member Vote. An interim member may vote on any matter under consideration 

only in the absence of the regular member from the meeting. 
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Section 4-11 Roll Call. Each roll call of the Recycling Board shall be in alphabetical order, except that 
the Chair shall be called last. 

 
Section 4-12 Roll Call Votes. Roll call votes shall proceed in the following manner: 

 
(a) The Chair will direct the Clerk of the Board to report on the Recycling Board members 
who have joined or left the meeting since the roll call of attendance at the beginning of 
the meeting; 

 
(b) The Chair will ask for a voice vote on the matter; 

 
(c) If there are no “nay” votes or abstentions, the Chair will direct that the matter be 
reported as passed unanimously with the names of all Recycling Board members in 
attendance reported as voting in favor; 

 
(d) If there are any “nay” votes or abstentions, the Chair will direct the Clerk of the Board 
to call the name of each member and record the vote of the member and then report the 
total number of “aye,” “nay” and “abstain” votes. The Chair shall be called last. 

 
Section 4-13 Roll Call Not Required. The roll need not be called in voting upon a motion except when 

requested by a member. If the roll is not called, in the absence of objection, the Chair 
may order the motion unanimously approved. 

 
Section 4-14   Voting Ineligibility. Any Recycling Board member attending a Recycling Board meeting 

and ineligible to vote on any matter under consideration by the Recycling Board at that 
meeting shall briefly describe the reason for being ineligible and then shall leave the 
Recycling Board table before the matter is considered and refrain from participation in 
any action concerning the matter. If the member is ineligible due to a conflict of interest 
under the Political Reform Act, the member’s disclosure shall include the information 
required by that Act and the member shall leave the room and not be counted towards a 
quorum. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a member is not required to leave the Recycling 
Board table or room for matters that are on the consent calendar. 

 
Section 4-15 Ex Parte Communications. Ex parte communication report forms should be submitted 

only for ex parte communications that are made after the matter has been put on the 
Recycling Board’s agenda, giving as much public notice as possible. 
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APPROVED 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

AND 
ALAMEDA COUNTY RECYCLING BOARD 

Thursday, December 8, 2022 

6:00 P.M. 

TELECONFERENCE MEETING 

I. CALL TO ORDER
President Zermeño called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Timothy Burroughs explained the
virtual meeting process being utilized during the meeting. A link to the process is available here:
Virtual-Meetings-Instructions.

II. ROLL CALL OF ATTENDANCE
Bob Carling, ACWMA
Eric Havel, Environmental Educator
Darby Hoover, Environmental Organization
Dan Kalb, ACWMA
Chiman Lee, Recycling Programs
Grace Liao, Source Reduction Specialist
Laura McKaughan, Recycling Materials Processing Industry
Jaime Patiño, ACWMA
Talia Wise, Solid Waste Industry Representative
Francisco Zermeño, ACWMA

Staff Present: 
Timothy Burroughs, Executive Director 
Pat Cabrera, Administrative Services Director 
Justin Lehrer, Operations Manager 
Alma Freeman, Communications Manager 
Meri Soll, Senior Program Manager 
Meghan Starkey, Senior Management Analyst 
Adrienne Ramirez, Assistant Clerk of the Board 
Arliss Dunn, Clerk of the Board 
Farand Kan, Deputy County Counsel 

Others Present: 
Elizabeth Carrade, City of Albany 
Keith Morin, City of Berkeley 
Shannan Young, and Michelle Sung, City of Dublin 
James Scanlin, City of Newark 
Soren Fajeau, City of Newark 
ZeeLaura Page, City of Pleasanton 

III. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE PRESIDENT
There were none.

ATTACHMENT 2
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IV. OPEN PUBLIC COMMENT
There were no public comments on the remote call and no public comments were received via the
public comments email address.

V. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of the Draft Joint WMA, EC and PC & RB Minutes of November 16, 2022

2. Resolution regarding meeting via teleconference to promote social distancing, pursuant
to AB 361

Adopt Resolution #RB 2022-14. 

3. Board Attendance Record

4. Written Report of Ex Parte Communication

Board member Patiño moved approval of the Consent Calendar and Board member Carling seconded. 
The motion carried 7-0-2 for item 1. 
(Ayes: Carling, Havel, Hoover, Kalb, Liao, Wise, Zermeño. Nays: None. Abstain: McKaughan, Patiño. 
Absent: Lee). 

The motion carried 9-0 for items 2, 3 & 4.  
(Ayes: Carling, Havel, Hoover, Kalb, Liao, McKaughan, Patiño, Wise, Zermeño. Nays: None. Abstain: None. 
Absent: Lee). 

VI. REGULAR CALENDAR

1. Expenditure Plan Approvals and Updates for Accumulated Measure D Funds (Meri Soll &
Jennifer West)

Staff recommends that the Recycling Board approve the Expenditure Plans submitted 
by the Cities of Berkeley and Newark and receive and approve the Expenditure Plan 
updates by Albany, Dublin and Pleasanton. 

Timothy Burroughs introduced the item. Jennifer West provided an overview of the staff report and 
presented a PowerPoint presentation. A link to the report and the presentation is available here: 
Measure-D-Expenditure-Plans-memo.pdf 

Staff from the cities of Albany, Berkeley, Dublin, Newark, and Pleasanton were present to answer 
questions. The Board was provided time for discussion and for clarifying questions. An audio link to 
the discussion is available here:  Measure-D-Expenditure-Plans 

There were no public comments for this item. Board member Cox moved approval of the staff 
recommendation and Board member Kalb seconded. The motion carried 10-0. The Clerk called the 
roll: 
(Ayes: Carling, Havel, Hoover, Kalb, Lee, Liao, McKaughan, Patiño, Wise, Zermeño. Nays: None. 
Abstain: None. Absent: None). 

2. Rules of Procedure for Teleconferencing at Recycling Board Meetings (Timothy Burroughs)
Staff recommends that the Recycling Board adopt Resolution 2022-15 to remove the 
limit on the number of Board Members who may utilize teleconferencing for Board 
and Committee meetings and to incorporate the Just Cause and Personal Emergency 
provisions of AB 2449. 
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Timothy Burroughs provided an overview of the staff report. A link to the report is available here: 
Teleconferencing-Rules-of-Procedure-memo.pdf. The Board was provided additional time for 
discussion and for clarifying questions. An audio link to the discussion is available here: Rules-of-
Procedure-Discussion 

Timothy Burroughs informed the Board that staff presented this item to the Programs & 
Administration Committee of the WMA Board for discussion and the Committee voted to 
recommend to the WMA Board a revised motion that the WMA Board adopt a resolution to amend 
its Rules of Procedure to remove the limit on the number of board members who may utilize 
teleconferencing for board and committee meetings; to require that board members provide the 
Clerk of the Board at least six days notice in advance of the affected board meeting if they wish to 
utilize teleconferencing from a noticed location, to not incorporate the Just Cause and Personal 
Emergency provisions of AB 2449 into the Rules of Procedure; and that the Board evaluate these 
changes to the Rules of Procedure in nine months (by July 2023).  

There were no public comments on this item. Board member Carling moved to approve the 
recommendation aligned with the WMA Board and that the Planning Committee and Recycling 
Board adopt a resolution to amend its Rules of Procedure to remove the limit on the number of 
board members who may utilize teleconferencing for board and committee meetings; to require 
that board members provide the Clerk of the Board at least six days notice in advance of the 
affected board meeting if they wish to utilize teleconferencing from a noticed location, to not 
incorporate the Just Cause and Personal Emergency provisions of AB 2449 into the Rules of 
Procedure; and that the Board evaluate these changes to the Rules of Procedure in nine months (by 
July 2023). Board member Hoover seconded and the motion carried 10-0. The Clerk called the roll: 
(Ayes: Carling, Havel, Hoover, Kalb, Lee, Liao, McKaughan, Patiño, Wise, Zermeño. Nays: None. 
Abstain: None. Absent: None). 

3. 2023 Meeting Schedule (Timothy Burroughs)
That the Planning Committee and Recycling Board approve the 2023 meeting 
schedule. 

Timothy Burroughs provided an overview of the staff report. A link to the report is available here: 
2023-Meeting-Schedule.pdf. The Board was provided additional time for discussion and clarifying 
questions. There were no public comments on this item. Board member Havel moved approval of 
the 2023 meeting schedule and Board member Wise seconded. The motion carried 10-0. The Clerk 
called the roll: 
(Ayes: Carling, Havel, Hoover, Kalb, Lee, Liao, McKaughan, Patiño, Wise, Zermeño. Nays: None. 
Abstain: None. Absent: None). 

4. Election of Officers for 2023 (Timothy Burroughs)
That the Planning Committee and Recycling Board elect Officers for 2023. 

Timothy Burroughs provided an overview of the staff report. A link to the report is available here: 
2023-Election-of-Officers.pdf. The Board was provided additional time for discussion and clarifying 
questions. There were no public comments on this item. Board member McKaughan nominated 
Board member Havel to serve as Second Vice President. There were no further nominations. Board 
member McKaughan moved approval of the slate of officers for 2023; Board member McKaughan, 
President, Board member Kalb, First Vice President, and Board member Havel, Second Vice 
President. Board member Kalb seconded. The motion carried 10-0. The Clerk called the roll: 
(Ayes: Carling, Havel, Hoover, Kalb, Lee, Liao, McKaughan, Patiño, Wise, Zermeño. Nays: None. 
Abstain: None. Absent: None). 
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VII. MEMBER COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Burroughs announced that the 2023 grant solicitation will kick off on January 12, 2023. There is
$1.1 million available in multiple focus areas such as waste prevention, reuse, and recovery of food,
goods and materials as well as development, marketing, and use of recovered products. Staff will
provide additional information to the Board as well as outreach tools to help disseminate the
opportunity.

Mr. Burroughs encouraged the board to check out the Agency’s Stop Food Waste blog, which provides 
monthly seasonal tips, recipes, and stories about how to get the most out of food and waste less in our 
homes and communities.  More information on how to subscribe is available at 
www.stopfoodwaste.org/subscribe. 

Board member Hoover announced that NRDC’s Savethefood.com is another resource for not wasting 
food.  

VIII. ADJOURNMENT – to January 12, 2023 at 4:00 pm.
The meeting adjourned at 7:03 p.m.
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